Public Document Pack

AGENDA
AUDIT PANEL
Date:

TUESDAY, 20 MARCH 2018 at 7.00 pm

Committee Room 4
Civic Suite
Lewisham Town Hall
London SE6 4RU
Enquiries to:
Telephone:

Olga Cole
0208 314 8577 (direct line)

COUNCILLORS

Independent Members

Councillor Jonathan Slater (Chair)
Councillor Helen Klier (Vice
Chair)Councillor Mark Ingleby
Councillor Joyce Jacca
Councillor Maja Hilton
Councillor Susan Wise

Carole Murray
Ian Pleace
Stephen Warren
1 Vacancy

Members are summoned to attend this meeting
Barry Quirk
Chief Executive
Lewisham Town Hall
Catford
London SE6 4RU
Date: 12 March 2018

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some
business in private. Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request.

ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA
Item
No

Page
No.s

1.

Minutes

1-5

2.

Declarations of Interests

6-9

3.

Update on 2017/18 Closing of Accounts and External Audits

10 - 42

4.

Grant Thornton's Certification of Work for LBL for Year Ended 31 March

43 - 48

5.

Risk Management Strategy

49 - 67

6.

Internal Audit Update and Plan

68 - 97

Agenda Item 1
AUDIT PANEL
Report Title

MINUTES

Key Decision

Item No. 1

Ward
Contributors

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Class

Part 1

Date: 20 March 2018

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Panel, which was open to
the press and public, held on 14 September 2017 be confirmed and signed.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\0\ai00019098\$zswnhquk.doc

Page 1

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT PANEL
Thursday, 14 September 2017 at 7.00 pm

PRESENT: Councillors Jonathan Slater (Chair), Mark Ingleby, Maja Hilton, and Susan Wise
ALSO PRESENT: Carole Murray, Ian Pleace and Stephen Warren

1. Election of Vice Chair
Councillor Helen Klier was elected as Vice-Chair for the Audit Panel for the municipal
year 2017/18
2. Minutes
The minutes of the last meeting are to be amended as follows:
Under “Minutes 23”, it is not clear what the copy of the publication on consultants
refers to; it was suggested that it may be referring to the data of trend of contractors
leaving authorities because of recent tax changes. Darren Wells had said he would
look to see if this data existed, which it does not.
Action 2: this action is on item 6 of this agenda
Action 3: it was agreed to wait for the Grenfell enquiry and the Housing Select
Committee before proceeding. The issue of income generation is to be addressed at
the Public Accounts Committee meeting on the 22 September 2017.
3. Declarations of Interest
Darren Wells declared a non-pecuniary interest as he had signed the letter from the
Council submitting the bid from Goldsmiths, one of the final bidders on the Ladywell
Playtower.
Councillor Susan Wise declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 5 as a director of
Lewisham Homes.
4. Final Accounts 2016/17- Grant Thornton
Darren Wells discussed the outcome of this report. Discussing the stages of the
audit, he detailed that it is substantially complete- there was nothing significant thus
far to be brought to the attention of the Panel. The quality of the statement of
accounts was high, noticeably improved from previous years.
There was nothing emerging from the key risks reported to the Panel in the audit
plan.
A further disclosure note on the restatement of the service expenditure has been
included in the finalised statement.

Page 2

The report also highlighted the findings on Value for Money. Grant Thornton were
unable to give a conclusion on Value for Money at this point, because of the New
Bermondsey planning decision.
During the course of the audit, there were also 3 objections raised in relation to the
value for money of the accounts- 2 on LOBOLs (Lender Only Borrowing Options
Loans) and one on a private finance initiative. These objections are also being raised
at other authorities. Until the objections are considered, the audit cannot be formally
certified and completed, but auditors are able to give the opinion on the statements,
which will be done by the end of September 2017.
Darren Wells asked that the Panel note that there is a copy of the proposed opinion
in the first Final Accounts report, which incorrectly states that the value for money
conclusion can be issued.
Action>> Upon exit from One Oracle Cloud, and the new finance system going live
in March 2018, exposure regarding the new systems business plan and the issues of
controlling should go to the Audit Panel
Jamie Bewick gave an update on the Pension Fund. The Pension Fund Accounts
have been in good quality. There were a few classification adjustments which were
highlighted in the report. None of these effected the overall valuation of the Fund. As
with the main accounts, the main audit is done in June and this was largely achieved,
but because of issues on both sides, some of this work was continued in August.
Some work will need to be done to make the process more resilient. An unqualified
opinion on the Pension Fund is being proposed which is also further detailed in the
report.
5. Final Accounts 2016/17- LBL Response to Grant Thornton’s Findings
Paul Calnan introduced this report. The reparation to the statement of accounts went
very well. The team was resourced well and LBL specifically wanted to address the
issue Grant Thornton raised in its reviews. The letter of representation, tabled at the
meeting, is for the Panel to note the basis on which Grant Thornton are asking
officers to give representations before the Audit’s opinion is issued. The letter of
representation is asking management to represent that they believe that no further
disclosures need to be made in the financial statements
6. A briefing on the 2016/17 Employment Profile
Adam Bowles gave an overview of the highlights of the findings in the report. The
Council’s workforce has reduced in the last year from 2300 to 2209. The ratio of
female to male employees is 6:4. There is an 11% gender pay gap; females being
paid more than males. The number of resignations within the borough have fallen
slightly from 50% to 43%. Lewisham Council is almost half the size of employees as
it was 10 years moving from 4000 employees originally. Part-time employees
represent approximately 1/5 of the workforce- 1 in 4 females being part-time
compared to 1 in 10 males. LBL is slightly above average for the number of
employees under 25 and are recruiting well in that category.
2 out of 3 of the workforce are aged over 40- the average age of a Lewisham
employee is 46 and the average length of service is 10 years. Only 45% of

Page 3

employees declare their religious status and 45% do not declare their sexual
orientation.
In terms of recruitment, there is an average of 14 applicants per post, which was 13
the previous year- only 1 in 20 do not declare their BAME status and 1 in 10
applicants do not declare their LGBT status.
In regards to the next steps of improving the employment profile for Lewisham, the
attractiveness to recruit candidates will be looked into as well as the Cloud system to
look at the EVP (Employee Value Proposition) to ensure recruitment is attractive and
advertised well. Work will also be done to raise the profile of LGBT and ensure they
are well supported and the new IT systems will be used to collect more data of
protected characteristics to get a better understanding of the employee profile.
Lewisham are now fully compliant of the IR35 regulations in relation to agency
workers and an external audit will be taking place on this matter. Work is also being
done to convert agency workers to permanent employees where possible.
The issue of apprentice recruitment is being addressed both in the Mayor’s office and
also via borough entry movement. This is a good way to reach the younger workforce
although the age restrictions on apprenticeships. In terms of developmental activity
for staff, Lewisham can look into making more roles developmental, including
apprentices.
The Council has signed up to be disability confident employer and this will explored
further in employability and recruitment, and the nature of flexible working for those
with disabilities. Under the employee assistance programme, telephone advice is
now available and the Council has taken part in mental first aid training. Managers
are being trained on identifying stress among employees and the occupational health
managers are also training managers on how to manage stress in the workplace.
One of the challenges in gender equality is that because of the number of agency
workers, particularly within the environment division, many of those will be refuse
workers and male. As a consequence the number of male staff at the lower scale, will
be fewer, so the average is therefore lower. The disparity between male and female
pay within the borough is also a consequence of most heads of service/directorates
are female, bringing the average pay higher than males.
7. Internal Audit Update
David Austin gave an update on the progress of the internal audit. Over the summer,
there was a rise in the recommendations. Two recommendations that were not
agreed by management were referred to the Internal Control Board. They delegated
the decision to the relevant Executive Director to assess and ensure the risk control
balance is being taken into consideration. Their decision will be reflected in the
monitoring of recommendations in the usual way.
The internal control board is made up of the executive management team, chaired by
an independent former Chief Executive. Its scope is to look at the annual government
statement, to ensure the government arrangements are well monitored, risk
management and the internal audit and counter fraud areas are running effectively.
The service will be working with the finance and HR teams implementing the new
Oracle ERP system to assess proposed controls in the new processes.

Page 4

The 9 audits from the 2016/17 audit plan that were outstanding are now finalised.
The 2017/18 plan is now underway. The core financial audits will start in quarter
three.
The meeting finished at 8.22 p.m

Page 5

Agenda Item 2
AUDIT PANEL
Report Title

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Key Decision

Item No. 2

Ward
Contributors

Chief Executive

Class

Part 1

Date: 20 March 2018

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the
agenda.
1

Personal interests
There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member
Code of Conduct :(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests
(2) Other registerable interests
(3) Non-registerable interests

2

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:-

(a)

Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or
gain

(b)

Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial
benefit from a Trade Union).

(c)

Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they
are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods,
services or works.

(d)

Beneficial interests in land in the borough.

(e)

Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\0\ai00019099\$val4c5kx.doc

Page 6

(f)

Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of
which they have a beneficial interest.

(g)

Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:(a)

that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land
in the borough; and

(b)

either
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of
the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued
share capital of that class.

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.
(3)

Other registerable interests
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register
the following interests:-

(4)

(a)

Membership or position of control or management in a body to which
you were appointed or nominated by the Council

(b)

Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the influence
of public opinion or policy, including any political party

(c)

Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £25

Non registerable interests
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be
likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of
Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning the closure of a school
at which a Member’s child attends).

(5)

Declaration and Impact of interest on member’s participation

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\0\ai00019099\$val4c5kx.doc

Page 7

(6)

(a)

Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are
present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded
in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary
interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter
and withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the
Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an
interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a
fine of up to £5000

(b)

Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event
before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room,
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless
paragraph (c) below applies.

(c)

Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to
influence the outcome improperly.

(d)

If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a
member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to
the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a
registerable interest.

(e)

Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s
personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek
the advice of the Monitoring Officer.

Sensitive information
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk
of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such
interest need not be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to
the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance.

(7)

Exempt categories

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\0\ai00019099\$val4c5kx.doc

Page 8

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing
so. These include:(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the
matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears
exception)
School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or
of which you are a governor;
Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt
Allowances, payment or indemnity for members
Ceremonial honours for members
Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception)

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\0\ai00019099\$val4c5kx.doc

Page 9

Agenda Item 3
AUDIT PANEL
Report Title

Update on 2017/18 Closing of Accounts and External Audit

Key Decision

No

Ward

All

Contributors

Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration

Class

Part 1

Item No. 3

Date: 20th March 2018

1.

SUMMARY AND PURPOSE

1.1.

This report provides an update to members of the Audit Panel on the
preparations for the 2017/18 closing of accounts and statutory external audit.

2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1.

The Audit Panel is asked to note the contents of the report.

3.

2017/18 EXTERNAL AUDIT

3.1.

Grant Thornton began as the Council’s external auditors on 1 November 2012.
Senior management and senior accountants in the Financial Services Division
have met regularly with senior representatives of Grant Thornton since the
conclusion of the 2015/16 external audit. This will ensure that the next external
audit is equally successful.

3.2.

Grant Thornton continue to progress with their interim audit. This was started in
January 2018 and is expected to be completed by April 2018. The areas which
are currently being covered as part of this interim process include: updating
their review of the council’s control environment, updating their understanding
of the financial statements and doing some early work on emerging accounting
issues.

3.3.

Grant Thornton will begin their substantive work auditing the Council’s annual
accounts in June 2018.

4.

2017/18 CLOSING OF ACCOUNTS

4.1.

The 2017/18 Closing of Accounts timetable, guidance notes and reporting
deadlines have again been reviewed and updated.

Page 10

5.

2017/18 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

5.1.

The Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounts, as agreed by the Department for
Communities and Local Government. The pre-audit Statement of Accounts is
required to be completed and submitted for external audit by no later than the
end of May 2018. The audited Statement of Accounts is required to be
completed and approved by full Council by the 18th July 2018.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1.

There are no financial, legal, crime and disorder, equalities or environmental
implications directly arising from this report.

7.

CONCLUSION

7.1.

The report confirms that plans and procedures are in place to enable a timely
and accurate audited Statement of Accounts to be produced at year-end.

For further information on this report please contact:
Selwyn Thompson, Head of Financial Services, on 020 8314 6932
Paul Calnan, Acting Group Finance Manager – Accounting, on 020 8314 6167

Page 11

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018
Page 12

London Borough of Lewisham
February 2018

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

Contents
Section

Page

1. Introduction & headlines

3

2. Deep business understanding

4

3. Significant risks identified

5

4. Reasonably possible risks identified

7

5. Other matters

8

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

6. Materiality

9

7. Group audit scope and risk assessment

10

Page 13

8. Value for Money arrangements

11

9.

12

Paul Grady

Engagement Leader
T: 020 7728 2319

Audit logistics, team & audit fees

10. Independence & non-audit services

13

E: paul.d.grady@uk.gt.com

Paul Jacklin

Engagement Senior Manager

Appendices
A. Revised ISAs

14

T: 020 7728 3263
E: paul.j.jacklin@uk.gt.com

Andy Ayre
Engagement Manager
T: 020 7728 2328
E: andy.j.ayre@uk.gt.com

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.
We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,
nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members
is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

2

Introduction & headlines

Scope of our audit

Purpose

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of the London Borough of Lewisham (‘you’) for those charged with governance.

•

financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement) that have been
prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance (the
Audit Panel); and

Respective responsibilities

•

Your Value for Money arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in your use of resources.

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and
end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are
also set in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as
auditor of the London Borough of Lewisham. We draw your attention to both of these
documents on the PSAA website.

Page 14

Significant risks

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Panel of
your responsibilities. It is your responsibility to ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for the conduct of your business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for. We have considered how you are fulfilling these responsibilities.
Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of your business and is risk
based.

Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have
been identified as:
•

Management over-ride of controls

•

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

•

Valuation of pension fund liability

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit
Findings (ISA 260) Report.
Materiality

We have determined planning materiality to be £19.9m (PY £19.6m), which equates to 1.75% of your prior year gross expenditure
(adjusted for non-recurring items). We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly
trivial’ to you. Clearly trivial has been set at £0.99m (PY £0.98m).

Value for Money arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risks:

Audit logistics

•

Budget management

•

Savings plans and medium term financial planning

•

Transformation programme

Our interim visit will take place in March 2018 and our final visit will take place in June 2018. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and
our Audit Findings Report.
Our fee for your audit will be no less than £193,233 (PY: £193,233).

Independence

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

3

Deep business understanding
Changes to service delivery
Commercialisation

Transformation

The scale of
investment
activity, primarily
in commercial
property, has
increased as local
authorities seek to
maximise income
generation.

The Lewisham Future programme is your
approach to making the transformational
changes necessary for you to reposition
yourself for the future while living within the
financial resources at your disposal. This is
technology enabled and seeks to drive
innovation, financial and non-financial
benefits, to deliver service improvements and
better working with residents
Regeneration/Restructure

Page 15

As part of your
work to generate
additional income
you plan to bring
forward Private
Rented Scheme
(PRS)
development
options. The
establishment of
Joint Venture to
develop Besson
Street PRS is the
first stage in this
process.

You are involved in a number of schemes to
revitalising Lewisham town centre, each of
which will play a part in providing new
homes, jobs and amenities. The single
largest scheme is Lewisham gateway which,
when complete, will include shops,
restaurants, bars and cafes, leisure facilities
and up to 800 homes. Catford Town centre is
also undergoing major transformation. The
North Deptford area of the borough includes
four ‘strategic’ regeneration sites which,
between them, could provide over half of the
borough’s new housing provision for the
period 2011–2026 as well as significant
amounts of new business space.
All these schemes will assist you with
expanding your Council Tax base and
increasing revenues from Business Rates.

Changes to financial reporting requirements
Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 (the
Regulations)
The Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) is
currently undertaking a
review of the Regulations,
which may be subject to
change. The date for any
proposed changes has yet
to be confirmed, so it is not
yet clear or whether they
will apply to the 2017/18
financial statements.

Under the 2015
Regulations local
authorities are required to
publish their accounts
along with the auditors
opinion by 31 July 2018.

Key challenges

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Impacts of Grenfell Tower fire

Financial pressures

DCLG has issued revised
guidance on the calculation of the
Item 8 Determination for 2017/18,
which :

The Grenfell Tower fire
disaster in 2017 has led to the
identification of approximately
150 high rise buildings in local
authority ownership that have
failed fire safety tests. Local
authorities are expected to
make these buildings fire safe.
Three tower blocks managed
by the Council’s ALMO,
Lewisham Homes, failed
testing of their Aluminium
Composite Material cladding
types. This cladding was
removed and replaced by the
end of 2017.

You are currently projecting a
£12.9m overspend on the
2017/18 budget. Should you
utilise the risk and other
budget pressures reserve in
full this will reduce your
overspend to £11.6m.

-

-

- extends transitional
arrangements for reversing
impairment charges and
revaluation losses on dwelling
assets and applies this
principle to non-dwelling
assets from 2017/18,
- confirms arrangements for
charging depreciation to the
HRA and permitting
revaluation gains that reverse
previous impairment and
revaluation losses to be
adjusted against the HRA.

Changes to the CIPFA 2017/18 Accounting Code
CIPFA have introduced other minor changes to the 2017/18
Code which confirm the going concern basis for local authorities,
and updates for Leases, Service Concession arrangements and
financial instruments.

Implementation of new financial
ledger
On 1st April 2018, you will be
implementing a new financial
ledger system, replacing a
system shared with London
Borough of Croydon. The
implementation of the new
system has risks specifically in
relation to the completeness
and accuracy of data
transferred to the new ledger.

You have set a balanced
budget for 2018/19 which
includes an overall increase in
Council Tax of 4.20%, and
savings of £4.9m. In addition,
the budget proposals include a
transfer of £5m from the New
Homes Bonus reserve to the
General Fund and the use of
£3.6m reserves. You have
also set aside £13.4m for
identified and unidentified
corporate risks and pressures.
Going forward you will need to
identify further savings of circa
£35m for 2019/20 and
2020/21. Your Medium Term
Financial Strategy anticipates
that post 2020 approximately
£10m per year of savings will
be required.

Our response
•

We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources, including your progress on regeneration schemes as part of our work in reaching our Value
for Money conclusion.

•

We will consider whether your financial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and will review any related disclosures in the financial statements.

•

We will keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to financial reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going
discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

•

As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2017/18 CIPFA Code.
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

4

Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material
misstatement. Such risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential
magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent
transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there
is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature
of your revenue streams, we have determined that the risk of fraud
arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

Page 16

Management over-ride of controls

•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

•

The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including
yourselves, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as
unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for you.
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the
risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities.
You face external scrutiny of your spending, and this could
potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of
how they report performance.
Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit
consideration.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

We will:
•

Gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements
applied and decisions made by management and consider their
reasonableness.

•

Obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual
journal entries for appropriateness.

•

Evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or
significant unusual transactions.

5

Significant risks identified
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of property,
plant and equipment

You revalue your land and buildings on an annual basis to ensure that
carrying value is not materially different from fair value. This represents
a significant estimate by management in the financial statements.

We will:

We identified the valuation of land and buildings revaluations and
impairments as a risk requiring special audit consideration.
.

Page 17

Valuation of pension
fund net liability

Your pension fund asset and liability as reflected in your balance sheet
represent a significant estimate in the financial statements.



Review management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the
estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their
work.



Consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management
experts used.



Discuss with the valuer the basis on which the valuation is carried out and
challenge the key assumptions.



Review and challenge the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust
and consistent with our understanding.



Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input
correctly into your asset register and financial statements.



Evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not
revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves that
these are not materially different to current value.

We will:


Identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension
fund liability is not materially misstated. We will also assess whether these
controls were implemented as expected and whether they are sufficient to
mitigate the risk of material misstatement.



Evaluate the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried
out your pension fund valuation. We will gain an understanding of the basis
on which the valuation is carried out.



Undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial
assumptions made.



Check the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures
in notes to the financial statements with the report from your actuary.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund net liability as a risk
requiring special audit consideration.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

6

Reasonably possible risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be
reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of substantive work. The risk
of misstatement for an RPR is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of
the business.
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Employee remuneration

Payroll expenditure represents a significant percentage (29.8%) of
your operating expenses.

We will

Page 18
Operating expenses

As the payroll expenditure comes from a number of individual
transactions there is a risk that payroll expenditure in the accounts
could be understated. We therefore identified completeness of
payroll expenses as a risk requiring particular audit attention

Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also represents a
significant percentage (59.2%) of your operating expenses.
Management uses judgement to estimate accruals of un-invoiced
costs.

•

Evaluate your accounting policy for recognition of payroll
expenditure for appropriateness.

•

Gain an understanding of your system for accounting for payroll
expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated controls.

•

Obtain and review the year-end payroll to general ledger
reconciliation. We will investigate significant adjusting items.

•

Agree payroll related accruals to supporting documents and
review the reasonableness of estimates.

We will
•

Evaluate your accounting policy for recognition of non-pay
expenditure for appropriateness.

•

Gain an understanding of your system for accounting for non-pay
expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated controls.

We identified completeness of non- pay expenses as a risk requiring
particular audit attention:
•

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

Sample testing of payments made in the new financial year to
ensure these have been charged to the appropriate year.

7

Other matters
Other work

Other material balances and transactions

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

•

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued and consistent with our
knowledge of you.

•

We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the
financial statements on which we give an opinion and that the disclosures included in
it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.
We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

•

We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required,
including:

•

Page 19

•

•

giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in
relation to the 2017/18 financial statements;

•

issue of a report in the public interest; and

•

making a written recommendation to you, copied to the Secretary of State.

Going concern
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is
a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)
570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and
evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

We certify completion of our audit.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

8

Materiality
The concept of materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements
and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and
applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if
they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Materiality for planning purposes

£19.9m
Prior Year Gross expenditure (adjusted
for non-recurring items)
£1,150m

Whole financial
statements materiality
(PY: £19.6m)

(PY: £1,120m)

Page 20

We propose to calculate financial statement materiality based on a proportion of your
gross expenditure for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark.
We have determined planning materiality (the financial statements materiality
determined at the planning stage of the audit) to be £19.9m (PY £19.6m), which
equates to 1.75% of your prior year gross expenditure (adjusted for non-recurring items)
for the year. We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower
level of precision.

Materiality

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we
become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a
different determination of planning materiality
Matters we will report to the Audit Panel
Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit
Panel any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are
identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged
with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements
other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260
(UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken
individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative
criteria. In your context, we propose that an individual difference could normally be
considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £0.99m (PY £0.98m).
If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of
the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the
Audit Panel to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

£0.99m
Misstatements reported
to the Audit Panel
Forecast gross expenditure

(PY: £0.98m)

Materiality

9

Group audit scope and risk assessment
In accordance with ISA (UK) 600, as group auditor we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the components
and the consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

Significant?

Level of response required
under ISA (UK and Ireland) 600

Lewisham Council

Yes

Lewisham Homes
Limited

Catford Regeneration
Partnership Limited

Page 21

Component

Risks identified

Planned audit approach

Comprehensive

-

Full scope UK statutory audit
performed by Grant Thornton
UK

No

Analytical

N/A

Desktop review performed by
Grant Thornton UK. We will
consider targeted procedures
on the material balance of
Property Plant and Equipment,
focussing on valuation.

No

Analytical

N/A

Desktop review performed by
Grant Thornton UK

Management over-ride of controls
Valuation of property, plant and equipment
Valuation of pension fund net liability
Employee remuneration
Operating expenses

Key changes within the group:


There have been no significant changes within the group

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

Audit scope:
Comprehensive – the component is of such significance to the
group as a whole that an audit of the components financial
statements is required
Targeted – the component is significant to the Group, audit
evidence will be obtained by performing targeted audit
procedures rather than a full audit
Analytical – the component is not significant to the Group and
audit risks can be addressed sufficiently by applying analytical
procedures at the Group level

Involvement in the work of component auditors
The nature, time and extent of our involvement in the
work of the company auditors will begin with a
discussion on risks, guidance on designing
procedures, participation in meetings, followed by the
review of relevant aspects of the company auditors’
audit documentation and meeting with appropriate
members of management.

10

Value for Money
arrangements
Background to our VFM approach
The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work
for 2017/18 in November 2017. The guidance states that for local
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on
whether you have proper arrangements in place.
The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed
decisions and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

Page 22

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks
Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that proper
arrangements are not in place to deliver value for money.
Budget Management
You are currently projecting a £12.9m overspend on the 2017/18 budget. Should you utilise the risk
and other budget pressures reserve in full this will reduce your overspend to £11.6m. This
anticipated overspend is larger than the prior year overspend of £7m. Should the position worsen
then this will increase the pressure into 2018/19.
In response to this risk we will:
•
•
•

Update our understanding of the pressures affecting the 2017/18 budget.
Consider whether you have adequate arrangements to manage those pressures and to secure
a sustainable financial position.
Consider your approach towards the use of reserves.

Savings and medium term financial planning
You have set a balanced budget for 2018/19 which includes an overall increase in the total Council
Tax of 4.20%, and savings of £4.9m. In addition, the budget proposals include a transfer of £5m
from the New Homes Bonus reserve to the General Fund, the use of £3.6m reserves, you have
also set aside £13.4m for identified and unidentified corporate risks and pressures. Going forward
you will need to identify further savings of circa £35m for 2019/20 and 2020/21. Your Medium Term
Financial Strategy anticipates that post 2020 approximately £10m per year of savings will be
required.

Informed
decision
making

In response to this risk we will:
•
•

Consider your arrangements to identify and deliver savings and efficiencies towards achieving
a sustainable medium term financial position.
Update our understanding of how you are working with partners in the local health economy to
achieve savings.

Transformation
Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Sustainable
resource
deployment

You are planning a significant transformation programme. This will be technology enabled and seek
to drive the right cultural outcomes from, and for, people, facilitating innovation to drive
transformational benefits – financial and non-financial – resulting in service improvements and
better working with residents. Any transformation programme of this scale, complexity and ambition
carries inherent risk.
In response to this risk we will:
•
•
•

Update our understanding of overarching programme management arrangements.
Consider whether you have adequate arrangements to manage the interdependencies, identify
and realise planned benefits and ensure robust and effective programme governance.
Asses the extent to which transformational plans and medium term financial planning is aligned,
and whether assumptions in financial plans align with programme ambitions.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

11

Audit logistics, team & audit fees
Audit
Panel
20th March 2018

Audit
Panel
July 2018

Interim audit
March 2018
Planning and
risk assessment

Audit
Panel
December 2018

Year end audit
June 2018
Audit Plan
and Interim
Progress
Report

Audit
Findings
Report

Audit
opinion

Annual
Audit
Letter

Page 23

Paul Grady, Engagement Lead

Audit fees

Paul will be the main point of contact for the Chief Executive and
Board Members. Paul will share his wealth of knowledge and
experience across the sector providing challenge, sharing good
practice, providing pragmatic solutions and acting as a sounding
board with Senior Management and the Audit Panel. Paul will
ensure our audit is tailored specifically to you and is delivered
efficiently. Paul will review all reports and the team’s work
focussing his time on the key risk areas to your audit

The planned audit fees are no less than £193,233 (PY: £193,233) for the financial
statements audit and £30,370 (PY: £41,235 for grant certification. Our fees for grant
certification cover only housing benefit subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited Fees in respect of other grant work, such as
reasonable assurance reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.
In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and your activities, do not
significantly change.
Our requirements

Paul Jacklin, Senior Audit Manager
Paul will work with the senior members of the finance and
executive teams, ensuring early delivery of testing and agreement
of accounting issues on a timely basis. Paul will attend Audit Panel
Committees, undertake reviews of the team’s work and draft
reports, ensuring they remain clear, concise and understandable to
all. Paul will work with Internal Audit to secure efficiencies and
avoid duplication, providing assurance for your Annual Governance
Statement.

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, you must ensure
that:
•

All audit queries arising from our interim work are responded to satisfactorily during the
interim audit and all testing samples provided to enable completion during the interim
audit

•

The draft accounts are provided to us by 31 May and are materially accurate;

•

Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts and other working papers are
provided to us by 31 May in accordance with the agreed upon information request list;

Andy Ayre, Audit Manager

•

All supporting schedules are clearly presented and agree to figures in the accounts;

Andy will lead the onsite team and will be the day to day
management contact for the audit. Andy will monitor the
deliverables, manage the query log with your finance team and
highlight any significant issues and adjustments to senior
management. Andy will coach the junior members of the team and
review the teams work.

•

Key management and accounting staff identified in our information request list are
available throughout the duration of our audit visits to help us locate information and to
provide explanations; and

•

All audit queries are resolved promptly and within agreed timescales.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

If any of the above requirements are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit
visit and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.
12

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence
Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm
or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 which sets out supplementary guidance
on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to you.

Page 24

Non-audit services
The following non-audit services were identified:
Service

Fees £

Threats

Safeguards

Audit related
Certification of Housing
capital receipts grant

TBC

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work for 2016/17 was £3,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £193,233 and in particular
relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element
to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Teachers’
Pension return

TBC

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work for 2016/17 was £6,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £193,233 and in particular
relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element
to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

26,000

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this for 3 year period from 2016/17 was £26,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £193,233 and
in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no
contingent element to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Non-audit related
Place Analytics
subscription for 3 years
from 2016/17

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are
consistent with your policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant
Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.
None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

13

Appendices

Revised ISAs

Page 25

A.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

Appendix A: Revised ISAs
Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report

Description of the requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern

We will be required to conclude and report whether:

Material uncertainty related to going
concern

Page 26

Other information

•

The directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate

•

The directors have disclosed identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about your ability to continue as a going
concern.

We will need to include a brief description of the events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on your ability to continue as
a going concern when a material uncertainty has been identified and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.
Going concern material uncertainties are no longer reported in an Emphasis of Matter section in our audit report.
We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:
•

Responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

•

A statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation

•

Reporting inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Additional responsibilities for directors
and the auditor

We will be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Format of the report

The opinion section appears first followed by the basis of opinion section.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

15

Page 27
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham | 2017/18

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018
Page 28

London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund
March 2018

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

Contents
Section

Page

1. Introduction & headlines

3

2. Deep business understanding

4

3. Significant risks identified

5

4. Reasonably possible risks identified

7

5. Other matters

9

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

6. Materiality

10

7. Audit logistics, team & audit fees

11

Page 29

8. Independence & non-audit services

12

Paul Grady

Engagement Leader
T: 020 7728 2319

E: paul.d.grady@uk.gt.com

Andy Ayre

Appendices
A. Revised ISAs

14

Engagement Manager
T: 020 7728 2328
E: andy.j.ayre@uk.gt.com

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Fund or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor
intended for, any other purpose.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members
is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

2

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

Scope of our audit

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit
of London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) for those charged with
governance.
Respective responsibilities

Page 30

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end
and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are also set in
the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as auditor of London
Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund. We draw your attention to both of these documents
on the PSAA website.
Significant risks

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards
on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of
those charged with governance (the Audit Panel).
The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Panel
of your responsibilities.
Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Fund's business and
is risk based.

Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been
identified as:
•

Fraud in revenue recognition – This risk has been rebutted for the Fund as documented on page 5

•

Management over-ride of controls

•

The valuation of Level 3 investments is incorrect

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit
Findings (ISA 260) Report.
Materiality

We have determined planning materiality to be £12.746m (PY £10.414m), which equates to 1% of your net assets. We are obliged to report
uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been
set at £0.637m (PY £0.637m).

Audit logistics

Our interim visit will take place in March 2018 and our final visit will take place in June 2018. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our
Audit Findings Report.
Our fee for the audit will be no less than £21,000 (PY: £21,000) for the Fund. Where requests are received from other auditors of other bodies
for assurance in respect of information held by the Fund and provided to the actuary to support their individual IAS 19 calculations these will
be billed in addition to the audit fee on a case by case basis.

Independence

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

3

Deep business understanding
Changes to financial reporting requirements

Changes to service delivery
Pooling
Arrangements for the pooling of investments continue to develop. The DCLG
have reported on the progress of pools and noted the pace of development,
including the launching of procurements for pool operators, appointing senior
officers and preparing applications for Financial Conduct Authority
authorisation. This remains a challenging agenda, with arrangements
required to be in place from 1 April 2018. These arrangements will have a
significant impact on how investments are managed and monitored, with
much of the operational responsibility moving to the pool operator. It
remains key that administering authorities (through Pension Committees and
Pension Boards) continue to operate strong governance arrangements,
particularly during the transition phase where funds are likely to have a mix
of investment management arrangements.

Page 31

In respect of this area, we understand there have been considerable
challenges at the London Common Investment Vehicle (CIV), with several
key members of Management having been replaced in recent months. Thus
the Council needs to obtain sufficient assurance over its investments with the
CIV in terms of the controls in place during the course of the year. There is
also a need to make sure the value of assets held with the CIV is clearly
disclosed in the Accounts and Annual Report.

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the
Regulations)
The Department of Communities and Local Government
(DCLG) is currently undertaking a review of the
Regulations, which may be subject to change. The date
for any proposed changes has yet to be confirmed, so it is
not yet clear or whether they will apply to the 2017/18
financial statements.
Under the 2015 Regulations local authorities are required
to publish their accounts along with the auditors opinion
by 31 July 2018.

Changes to the CIPFA 2017/18 Accounting Code
CIPFA have introduced minor changes to the 2017/18
Code, these include a new disclosure of investment
manager transaction costs and clarification on the
approach to investment concentration disclosure.
On-going Matters

Markets in Financial Instrument Directive (MiFID II)

•

January 2018 saw the implementation of MiFID II. The impact for the Fund
is that to be able to continue to access the same investments as previously,
they need to apply to ‘opt up’ and gain election to professional status.
Without this change in status some financial institutions could terminate their
relationship with the fund, which may have an adverse impact on the
achievement of the investment strategy

•
•

Indexation and equalisation of guaranteed minimum
pension (GMP) in public service pensions schemes
Reforms to public sector exit packages and the
application, or not, of the 2013 Fair Deal changes to
the LGPS
Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) work on options for
academies within the LGPS and review of Tier 3
employer risks

Key challenges
Financial pressures
The 2016 Triennial Valuation highlighted that the funding
level improved from 71% to 78% over the three year period
since 2013, and the Fund has an updated Contribution plan
in place to manage this position over the coming years.

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)
GDPR comes into effect in May 2018 and replaces the Data
Protection Act 1998. It introduces new obligations on data
controllers. The Fund is both a data controller and a data
processor and needs to ensure that it has appropriate
processes in place to comply with the changes being
introduced.

The Pensions Regulator (tPR) 2016 Governance and
Administration Survey
The results of this survey were published in May 2017.
Whilst they showed improvements in governance, tPR noted
that its focus for 2017-18 would be scheme governance,
record keeping, internal controls and member
communication. tPR also warned that its tolerance for
schemes’ shortcomings in these areas was reducing and
that they were more likely to use their enforcement powers
in the future, where scheme managers had not taken
sufficient action to address issues or meet their duties.

Our response
•

We will consider whether your financial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and will review any related disclosures in the financial statements.

•

We will keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to financial reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going
discussions.

•

As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2017/18 CIPFA Code.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

4

Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material
misstatement. Such risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential
magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Reason for risk identification

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent
transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
of the revenue streams at the Fund, we have determined that the
risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted,
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there because:
is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
recognition.
• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

Page 32

Risk

Management over-ride of controls

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including
London Borough of Lewisham as the Administering Authority of
London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund, mean that all
forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for London
Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund.
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the
risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

We will:
•

gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements
applied and decisions made by management and consider their
reasonableness

•

obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual
journal entries for appropriateness

•

evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or
significant unusual transactions.

Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit
consideration.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

5

Significant risks identified
Risk

Reason for risk identification

The valuation of Level 3 Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-routine
investments is
transactions and judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by their
incorrect
very nature require a significant degree of judgement to reach an
appropriate valuation at year end.

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
We will
gain an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing level 3 investments
and evaluate the design of the associated controls

•

review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance
management has over the year end valuations provided for these types of
investments.

•

consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management
experts used.

•

review the qualifications of the expert [insert fund manager or custodian if
used] to value Level 3 investments at year end and gain an understanding of
how the valuation of these investments has been reached.

•

for a sample of investments, test the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the
audited accounts, (where available) at the latest date for individual
investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date.
Reconcile those values to the values at 31 March 2017 with reference to
known movements in the intervening period.

Page 33

•

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

6

Reasonably possible risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be
reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of substantive work. The risk
of misstatement for an RPR is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of
the business.
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Contributions

Contributions from employers and employees’ represents a
significant percentage (83%) of the Fund’s revenue.

We will:

Page 34
Pension Benefits Payable

Pension benefits payable represents a significant percentage (88%)
of the Fund’s expenditure.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

•

evaluate the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of
contributions for appropriateness;

•

gain an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for
contribution income and evaluate the design of the associated
controls;

•

test a sample of contributions to source data to gain assurance
over their accuracy and occurrence;

•

rationalise contributions received with reference to changes in
member body payrolls and the number of contributing pensioners
to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily explained.
This will provide assurance over the completeness of the
Contributions included within the Accounts.

We will:
•

evaluate the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of pension
benefits expenditure for appropriateness;

•

gain an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for
pension benefits expenditure and evaluate the design of the
associated controls;

•

test the controls around the completeness, accuracy and
occurrence of benefit payments;

•

test a sample of individual pensions in payment by reference to
member files;

•

rationalise pensions paid with reference to changes in pensioner
numbers and increases applied in year to ensure that any
unusual trends are satisfactorily explained. This will provide
assurance over the completeness of the Benefits paid included
within the Accounts.
7

Reasonably possible risks identified
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The valuation of Level 2 investments is While level 2 investments do not carry the same level of inherent
We will
incorrect
risks associated with level 3 investments, there is still an element of  gain an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing Level 2
judgement involved in their valuation as their very nature is such that
investments and evaluate the design of the associated controls.
they cannot be valued directly.
 review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider
what assurance management has over the year end valuations
provided for these types of investments.

Page 35
© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18



consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any
management experts used.



review the qualifications of the expert [insert fund manager or
custodian if used] to value the level 2 investments at year end
and gain an understanding of how the valuation of these
investment has been reached.



for a sample of investments, test the valuation by obtaining
independent information from custodian/manager on units and
unit prices.

8

Other matters
Other work

Other material balances and transactions

The Fund is administered by London Borough of Lewisham (the ‘Council’), and the
Fund’s accounts form part of the Council’s financial statements. Therefore as well as
our general responsibilities under the Code of Practice a number of other audit
responsibilities also follow in respect of the Fund, such as:

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

•

We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required,
including:
•

Page 36

•

giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in
relation to the 2017/18 financial statements;

•

issue of a report in the public interest; and

•

making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of
State.

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves on the consistency of the pension fund
financial statements included in the pension fund annual report with the audited
Fund accounts.

Going concern
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is
a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)
570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and
evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

9

Materiality
The concept of materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable
law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually
or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Materiality for planning purposes

£12,756m
Net assets
£1,274,569m
(PY: £1,041,429m)

Whole financial
statements materiality
(PY: £10,414m)

Page 37

We propose to calculate financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the net
assets of the Fund for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark.
We have determined planning materiality (the financial statements materiality determined
at the planning stage of the audit) to be £12.746m (PY £10.414m), which equates to 1% of
your net assets for the prior year. We design our procedures to detect errors in specific
accounts at a lower level of precision.

Materiality

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we
become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different
determination of planning materiality
Matters we will report to the Audit Panel
Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit
Panel any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are
identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged with
governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than
those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines
‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in
aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of
the Fund, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be
clearly trivial if it is less than £0.637m (PY £0.637m).
If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the
audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit
Panel to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Net assets
£0.637m

Materiality

Misstatements reported
to the Audit Panel
(PY: £0.637m)

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

10

Audit logistics, team & audit fees
Audit
Panel
20 March 2018

Audit
Panel
July 2018

Interim audit
March 2018
Planning and
risk assessment

Audit
Panel
December 2018

Year end audit
June/July 2018
Audit Plan
& Interim
Progress
Report

Audit
Findings
Report

Audit
opinion

Annual
Audit
Letter

Page 38

Paul Grady, Engagement Lead

Audit fees

Paul will be the main point of contact for the Chief Executive, the
Section 151 Officer and Members. Paul will share his wealth of
knowledge and experience across the sector providing challenge,
sharing good practice, providing pragmatic solutions and acting as
a sounding board with Members and the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee. Paul will ensure our audit is tailored
specifically to you and is delivered efficiently. Paul will review all
reports and the team’s work.

The planned audit fees are no less than £21,000 (PY: £21,000) for the financial
statements audit. In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and
the Fund and its activities, do not significantly change.

Andy Ayre, Audit Manager
Andy will work with the senior members of the finance team
ensuring early delivery of testing and agreement of accounting
issues on a timely basis. Andy will attend Audit, Governance and
Standards Committees, undertake reviews of the team’s work and
draft reports ensuring they remain clear, concise and
understandable to all. Andy will work with Internal Audit to secure
efficiencies and avoid any duplication across the audit.
Audit Incharge
The audit in-charge will lead the onsite team and will be the day to
day contact for the audit. The audit in-charge will monitor the
deliverables, manage the query log with your finance team and
highlight any significant issues and adjustments to senior
management. The audit in-charge will undertake the more
technical aspects of the audit, coach the junior members of the
team and review the team’s work.

Where requests are received from other auditors of other bodies for assurance in respect
of information held by the Fund and provided to the actuary to support their individual IAS
19 calculations these will be billed in addition to the audit fee on a case by case basis.
Our requirements
To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, you must ensure
that:
•

All audit queries arising from our interim work are responded to satisfactorily during
the interim audit and all testing samples provided to enable completion during the
interim audit

•

The draft accounts are provided to us by 31 May and are materially accurate;

•

Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts and other working papers are
provided to us by 31 May in accordance with the agreed upon information request list;

•

All supporting schedules are clearly presented and agree to figures in the accounts;

•

Key management and accounting staff identified in our information request list are
available throughout the duration of our audit visits to help us locate information and to
provide explanations; and

•

All audit queries are resolved promptly and within agreed timescales.

If any of the above requirements are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit
visit and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

11

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence
Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm
or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 which sets out supplementary guidance
on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Fund.

Page 39

Non-audit services
No non-audit services were identified in respect of the Pension Fund. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton
UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

12

Appendices

Page 40

A.

Revised ISAs

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

Appendix A: Revised ISAs
Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report

Description of the requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern

We will be required to conclude and report whether:

Material uncertainty related to going
concern

•

The directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate

•

The directors have disclosed identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

We will need to include a brief description of the events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern when a material uncertainty has been identified and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.
Going concern material uncertainties are no longer reported in an Emphasis of Matter section in our audit report.

Page 41

Other information

We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:
•

Responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

•

A statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation

•

Reporting inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Additional responsibilities for directors
and the auditor

We will be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Format of the report

The opinion section appears first followed by the basis of opinion section.

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

14

Page 42
© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund | 2017/18

Agenda Item 4
AUDIT PANEL
Report Title

Certification of work for London Borough of Lewisham for year ended
31 March

Key Decision

No

Ward

All

Contributors

Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration

Class

Part 1

Item No. 4

Date: 20th March 2018

1.

SUMMARY AND PURPOSE

1.1.

This report provides an update on the certification work for the London Borough
of Lewisham for year ended 31st March 2017.

2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1.

The Audit Panel is asked to note the contents of the report.

3.

CERTIFICATION WORK

3.1.

The external auditors are required by the Public Sector Audit Appointments
Limited (PSAA) to certify certain claims and returns submitted by Lewisham
Council. This certification typically takes place six to nine months after the
claim period and represents a final, but important part of the process to confirm
the Council’s entitlement to funding.

4.

IMPLICATIONS

4.1.

There are no significant financial, legal, crime and disorder, equalities or
environmental implications directly arising from this report.

For further information on this report please contact:
Selwyn Thompson, Head of Financial Services, on 020 8314 6932
Paul Calnan, Acting Group Finance Manager – Accounting, on 020 8314 6167

Page 43

David Austin
Head of Corporate Resources
London Borough of Lewisham
Laurence House
Catford
London SE6 4RU

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Gatwick Office
2nd Floor
St John's House
Haslett Avenue West
Crawley
West Sussex RH10 1HS
T +44 (0)1293 554130

January 2018

www.grant-thornton.co.uk

Dear David
Certification work for London Borough of Lewisham for year ended 31 March 2017
We are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by London Borough
of Lewisham ('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after
the claim period and represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the
Council's entitlement to funding.
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer
Audit Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments
(PSAA) took on the transitional responsibilities for HB COUNT issued by the Audit
Commission in February 2015.
We have certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2016/17 relating to
subsidy claimed of £225.4 million. Further details are set out in Appendix A.
We identified a number of issues from our certification work, which we wish to highlight for
your attention. The errors were consistent with issues we have found in previous years. The
key recurring themes in the errors are:



Incorrect inputting of claimant income, from income, tax credits or other sources
across all benefit types. These errors have led to both underpayments and
overpayments to claimants.
Misclassifications within the subsidy claim not leading to under or over payments to
claimants.

As a result of the errors identified, the claim was qualified, and we reported our findings to
the DWP. The DWP may require the Council to undertake further work or provide
assurances on the errors we have identified.
Further details of the errors we found are at Appendix A.
The extrapolated financial impact on the claim, which we have reported to the DWP, was
again relatively insignificant to the total subsidy receivable. The overall rate of errors
continues to reduce compared to previous years, reflecting better quality control at the
Council.
The Council’s benefits team were engaged and cooperative during the course of our
certification work, responding to all our queries in a timely manner. This helped us to

Page 44

complete our work in advance of the Department’s deadline of 30 November 2017. We
would like to thank the team for all their support during this work.
The indicative fee for 2016/17 for the Council was based on the final 2014/15 certification
fees, reflecting the amount of work required by the auditor to certify the Housing Benefit
subsidy claim that year. The indicative scale fee set by PSAA for the Council for 2016/17 was
£41,235. This is set out in more detail in Appendix B.
Yours sincerely

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Page 45
2

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns certified for 2016/17
Claim or
return

Value

Amended? Amendment
value

Housing
benefits
subsidy claim

£225,422,262 No

Qualified?

Comments

Yes

See below

Findings from certification of housing benefits subsidy claim
Errors were identified on the claim, which were consistent with those reported in the
previous year. Overall the number of errors and types of errors continue to reduce compared
with earlier years, reflecting improving quality control at the Council. Furthermore the
financial impact of these errors was very small in the context of the overall claim.
These errors were reported more fully to the DWP in our qualification letter.
Rent rebates
We identified eight cases (out of 50 tested) where rent rebates were either under or overpaid
due to errors in input of earnings.
We found a further three cases (out of 51 tested) which were either under or overpaid due to
incorrect input of tax credits.
Rent rebates (classification)
Out of 47 cases tested, we identified five errors in the calculation of the LHA threshold
leading to misclassifications in the subsidy claim.
We found a further two misclassifications between cells 12 and 13
HRA rent rebates
Out of 44 cases tested, we identified eight where claimants had either been under or overpaid
due to incorrect calculation of earnings.
Rent allowances
We identified four cases (out of 40 tested) where assessed income had been input incorrectly,
resulting in over or underpayments of benefit
We identified one overpayment due to incorrect input of tax credits, and a further error,
which had no impact on benefit.

Page 46
3

Other issues
We found five classification errors where overpayments were offset against benefit awards.
As these had no impact on subsidy, no further work was undertaken and the errors were
reported to DWP as observations.
The Council has a policy of disposing of records after six years. From our initial testing we
identified two longstanding claimants where the original calculation of benefit award was no
longer held at the Council. The DWP is aware of this issue as we have reported this matter in
previous qualification letters and we reported it again in 2016/17.

Page 47
4

Appendix B: Fees for 2016/17 certification work
Claim or return

2014/15
fee (£)

2016/17
indicative
fee (£)

2016/17
actual fee
(£)

Variance
(£)

Explanation for variances

Housing benefits
subsidy claim
(BEN01)

£39,980

£41,235

£41,235

£0

n/a

Page 48
5

Agenda Item 5
Report To

Audit Panel

Report Title

Risk Management Strategy 2017 to 2020

Ward(s)

All

Contributors

Head of Corporate Resources

Class

Part 1

Item No

5

Date

20/03/2018

1.

Summary and Purpose

1.1.

This report provides an update to members of the Audit Panel on the revised Risk
Management Strategy for 2017 – 2020.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

The Audit Panel are asked to note the revised Risk Management Strategy covering
the period 2017 to 2020.

3.

Background & overview

3.1

The previous Risk Management Strategy (2013 – 2017) has been reviewed and
amended to ensure that it is compliant with the statutory requirements as defined in
the Audit & Accounts Regulations 2015.

3.2

The current Risk Management Strategy reflects best management practice as
detailed in the Management of Risk in Government Framework and is aligned with BS
ISO: 31000 and the HM Treasury Orange Book – Management of Risk – Principles and
Concepts .

3.3

The Risk Management Strategy (2017– 2020) was approved by the Executive
Management Team on 18 July 2017 and the Internal Control Board on 31 July 2017
and is attached at Appendix 1.

4.

Implications

4.1

There are no financial, legal, crime and disorder, equalities or environmental
implications directly arising from this report though there will be cross-cutting
benefits arising from financial security and stability and a reduction in exposure to
risk.

5.

Conclusion

5.1

This report confirms that the Risk Management Strategy has been updated and is
compliant with the requirements of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 and
reflects current best practice.

For further information on this report please contact:
David Austin – Head of Corporate Resources on 020 8314 9114 or
Karen Eaton – Group Manager, Insurance & Risk on 020 8314 6849

Page 49

RISK MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY
2017 – 2020

Page 50

Page 1
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Contents

Page 3

Introduction

Page 4

Objectives

Page 4

Risk Management Framework

Page 9

Roles and Responsibilities

Page 11

Reporting and Review Framework

Page 11

Training and Development

Page 12

Measuring our Success

Page 13

Appendix 1 - Risk Register Form

Page 14

Appendix 2 – Risk Descriptors

Page 16

Appendix 3 – Service Planning Risk Assessment
Guidance Note

Page 20

Appendix 4 - Corporate Internal Control Board Terms of
Reference

Page 51

Page 2
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Risk Management Strategy
The previous Risk Management Strategy (2013-2017) has been reviewed and amended to ensure that it
reflects current best management practice as detailed in the Management of Risk in Government
Framework and is aligned with BS ISO: 31000 and the HM Treasury Orange Book – Management of Risk –
Principles and Concepts . Our risk management arrangements must be compliant with the statutory
requirements as defined in the Audit & Accounts Regulations 2015.
The need for effective risk management is heightened yet further as we face the significant challenges of
delivering unprecedented cost reductions whilst maintaining high quality services. The scale and pace of
change and the need for more creative service delivery models adds to the complexity in identifying and
managing risks.
1.0 Introduction
The London Borough of Lewisham has developed and adopted this Risk Management Strategy, which will
be implemented during the period 2017 - 2020, with the objective of meeting its Risk Management Policy
and Mission Statement on risk management:
The Risk Management Policy of the London Borough of Lewisham is to adopt good practice in
the identification, evaluation and cost-effective control of risks to ensure that they are eliminated
or managed to an acceptable level and the benefits and outcomes of opportunities are
maximised.
Risk will be considered in every aspect of our business .Risk management will be at the heart of our
management practice to ensure that we will be in a stronger position to deliver excellent, efficient services in
accordance with our business objectives and the authority’s exposure to risk will be effectively managed and
opportunities optimised.
All employees will understand the nature of risk and accept responsibility for risks associated with their area of
authority. The necessary support, assistance and commitment of senior management will be provided to
equip and enable employees to meet their responsibilities.
A statement on the assessment of the authority’s risk management arrangements and their effectiveness will
be published annually in the Annual Governance Statement. .

The Risk Management Policy and Strategy aims to equip the Authority to:






Manage risks in accordance with its risk appetite, thereby enabling it to achieve its objectives more
effectively.
Integrate identification and management of risk into the culture of the Authority.
Harness risk management to identify opportunities and maximise benefits and outcomes.
Anticipate and respond in a proactive and timely manner to all social, environmental and legislative
changes and directives that may impact delivery of its objectives
Demonstrate increasing confidence in its ability to deal effectively with uncertainty presented by
internal and external pressures.

The Policy and Strategy will be reviewed triennially to ensure that it continually reflects the Authority’s
business needs, adds measurable value and remains challenging and responsive to Government direction
and requirements.
This strategy will assist the Authority in achieving compliance with our Code of Corporate Governance,
‘Risk Management and Internal Control’ and our Risk Management Policy. It will also ensure that the
Council meets the statutory regulations for risk management, as identified in the Audit and Accounts
Regulations 2015 and follows best practice as defined by CIPFA.

Page 52

Page 3
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Lewisham recognises the benefits of effective risk management as:
Strategic
Ensure the health, safety and security of service users, citizens & staff
Meet changing needs of customers/citizens, including disadvantaged groups
More efficient use of management time through improved ability to deliver goals/targets/objectives
Improved management information resulting in more informed decision making. Supports transparency
and accountability.
Reducing service disruption (and associated costs)
Greater financial control and reduction in level of uncontrolled expenditure
Systematic approach to identifying and reducing risks
Compliance with statutory regulations

Operational
Reducing the likelihood of injury to citizens and employees
Protect service delivery and its quality
User focussed service delivery, accessible by all, including disadvantaged groups
Avoid financial loss through fraud and corruption
Preventing damage to property and equipment
Minimising the cost of damages to the Council
Inform the appropriate method of risk financing and reducing insurance costs
Protect the image and reputation of the Authority

2.0 Objectives
The Risk Management Objectives of the London Borough of Lewisham are to:














Ensure the health, safety & security of service users, citizens and staff
Safeguard vulnerable children and adults to help prevent injury and damage
Help to achieve Corporate priorities
Integrate risk management into the culture of the Authority
Identify, evaluate and manage risk in accordance with good practice
Ensure legal and regulatory compliance as a minimum standard
Anticipate and respond to changing social, environmental and legislative requirements
Raise awareness of the need for risk management in all service areas
Mitigate risks
Enhance corporate governance of risk
Optimise opportunities
Reduce the cost of risk
Safeguarding Council assets

3.0 Risk Management Framework
This strategy approves a framework for risk analysis and risk management, based on a seven-step plan
and in accordance with published guidance.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Identifying Risk
Analysing Risk
Profiling Risk
Prioritising Action
Determining Action
Controlling Risk
Monitoring and Reporting Progress

Risk Analysis

Risk Management

Page 53

Page 4
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Risks will be identified at five levels: corporate strategic risks, directorate risks, service level risks, project
management risks and partnership risks.
3.1 Strategic Risks
Strategic Risks will be taken into account in judgements about the medium to long-term goals and
objectives of the Council. They may be risks relating to changes in the external context or significant
financial constraints within which we operate and examples are given in Table 1.
Table 1: Types of Strategic Risk
1

Comply with the Law

1A

Governance
e.g. Compliance with the Constitution (decision making etc), Judicial Review; Investigations;
Data Breaches etc

1B

Regulatory
e.g. Breach of Statutory Duties; Health & Safety Breach; Poor Inspection outcome
(OFSTED, CQC etc)

2

Provide Services to Users

2A

Process
Lack of Policies/Procedures; Poor Internal Audit; Customer Needs not met; Complaints;
Poor Customer Satisfaction etc

2B

Technology
System Availability; System Does Not Meet Business Needs; Failure in Delivery of Digital
Programme etc

3

Developing Staff & Partners

3A

Workforce
PES; HR Casewrok; Employee Relations; Recruitment and Retention issues etc

3B

Partnerships
Breakdown of Relationships; Conflicting Objectives etc

4

Services Represent Value for Money

4A

Procurement
Non-compliance with Procurement Regulations; Use of Corporate Procurement Procedures;
Contract Monitoring not Ensuring VFM etc

4B

Performance
Timely, Accurate, Complete Data; Lack of Clear Objectives; Incomplete Records; Effective
Scrutiny of Outcomes v Objectives etc

5

Manage Within Budget

5A

Financial
Budget Overspend; Non-Delivery of Savings; Compliance with Standing Orders/Financial
Regulations/Schemes of Delegation etc

5B

Business Continuity
BCPs Not Maintained; BCPs Not Tested; Adverse Weather; Major External Incident etc

Page 54

Page 5
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

3.1.1 Strategic Risk Analysis
Executive Directors will work with their management teams to identify potential significant risks on a six to
twelve month rolling horizon and analyse those risks in two ways; by the likelihood or frequency of the risk
event occurring and by the severity/impact on the organisation of the risk event occurring.
Risks identified will be linked to the corporate priorities and to the following risk categories to facilitate
analysis of cross-cutting risks and identify mutual benefits.
Risk Categories
1. Compliance with the Law
2. Provide services to users
3. Developing staff and customers
4. Services represent value for money
5. Manage within budget
Each Directorate will produce a Directorate Risk Register quarterly, specifying the likelihood or frequency of
the risk event occurring and the severity/impact on the organisation..
Each risk will be assessed to determine the current status after existing mitigation and control, and then a
target status (or ‘risk appetite) will be set for the risk. The scoring will be in accordance with the risk matrix
and descriptors at Appendix 2. The register will identify an officer responsible for the risk and identify what
action will be taken for any risks that are off target, together with dates by when the actions will be taken.
The Directorate Registers will be reported quarterly to both the Executive Management Team (EMT) and
the Internal Control Board (ICB) (Terms of Reference for this group are at Appendix 4) for scrutiny and
monitoring.
Directorate Management Teams will review their risk registers and undertake a ‘horizon scan’ of potential
emerging risks on a quarterly basis and note these in the register for future monitoring.
The Executive Management Team (EMT) forms the ICB, which will have an independent non-executive
chair, and will meet quarterly. This Board will identify key corporate strategic risks, drawn from the
Directorate Risk Registers, and score them in accordance with the matrix and descriptors thereby creating
and monitoring the Corporate Risk Register
3.1.2 Strategic Risk Management
The risk assessment matrix adopted by Lewisham is shown in Figure 1 below.
Figure 1: Risk Assessment Matrix

LIKELIHOOD

High

Med

Low

5

5

10

15

20

25

4

4

8

12

16

20

3

3

6

9

12

15

2

2

4

6

8

10

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

5

Low

Med

High

IMPACT

Strategic Risk Descriptors are attached at Appendix 2.

Page 55

Page 6
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Some strategic risks may already be well managed, some may require further mitigation whilst others may
be beyond the control of the Council and may simply require active monitoring and contingency
arrangements. Actions determined to manage risk may include:

Avoid

Eliminate or
Reduce

Transfer

Accept

Terminate the risk – by doing things differently and thus removing the risk where it is feasible
to do so. Countermeasures are put in place that either stop the threat or problem from
occurring or prevent it having any impact on the project or business.
Treat the risk – take action to control it in some way where the actions either reduce the
likelihood of the risk developing, or limit the impact to acceptable levels.
This is a specialist form of risk reduction where the management of the risk is passed to a
third party such as an insurance policy or penalty clause so that the impact of the risk is no
longer an issue for the Council. Not all risks can be transferred in this way however.

Tolerate the risk - because the activity is desirable or mandatory and nothing can be done at a
reasonable cost to mitigate it, or the likelihood and impact of the risk occurring are at an
acceptable level. The cost of controls must be proportionate to the risk.

Details of existing internal controls for each risk will be listed in the Directorate Risk Registers. Links to
other reporting mechanisms (e.g. performance management, business continuity management) or
supplementary control documents (e.g. service plans, business continuity plans, action plans arising out of
internal and external reviews etc) are to be noted to provide assurance that risks are systematically
controlled.
Where existing controls are non-existent or inadequate, ‘SMART’ action plans (specific, measurable,
achievable, realistic and timely) will be detailed in the Directorate Risk Registers. Risks that have been
identified will be reported and monitored on a regular basis according to the Reporting Framework (See
Section 4.0 Roles and Responsibilities).
The RAG rating for each strategic risk will be reported quarterly together with performance against target
and direction of travel against last quarter.
3.2 Operational Risks
Operational Risks will be encountered as part of the day to day Council business. They are risks that may
affect our ability to deliver satisfactory service provision. Heads of Service will be responsible for analysing
risks that could affect the ability to deliver services and meet objectives in their operational area.
3.2.1 Operational Risk Analysis
Risk will be considered as part of the Service Planning process and the key risks for the forthcoming year
will be identified in Service Plans. The key risks in each of the categories will be assessed in terms of
likelihood and impact, in accordance with the following key and as detailed in the Risk Assessment
Guidance at Appendix 3.
Judgement
Very High
High
Medium
Low
Very Low

Score
5
4
3
2
1

Page 56

Page 7
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Mitigation measures will be recorded and monitored as part of the routine service planning process,
business continuity and performance management monitoring processes, Heads of Service will work with
their teams to monitor, identify and analyse operational risks on a six to twelve month rolling horizon.
Risks for escalation to the Directorate Risk Register are to be reported to Directorate Management Teams.
3.3 Project Management
A project is generally defined as a time limited activity, designed to deliver a particular objective, through
making a change of some kind. In a climate of continuous change and service development, projectrelated activity is increasing across the Council. It is vital that risks to a project are identified and assessed,
with necessary controls put in place to ensure that a project is delivered successfully.
The management of project risks is an important element of the Lewisham Project Management training
course, and the approach adopted in the course is consistent with that of the overall Risk Management
Strategy. Additionally, the Project Management Guide also sets out the methodology to analyse and
manage risks to a project’s success which is consistent with the risk management strategy.
Identification and management of project risks are documented by the use of a Risk Register in the Project
Initiation Document (PID). Monitoring of major projects and any associated risks is conducted through the
Directorate Project Review Groups (PRGs), the Corporate Project Board and the Monthly Management
Report.
The roles and responsibilities relating to management of project risk are summarised in the following table:Group/Individual
Project Managers

Roles and Responsibilities



Identify risks to project and assess the impact and likelihood of
such risks through completion and monitoring of Project Initiation
Document (PID)
Nominate owners for each risk to the project and monitor actions
to control risks, instigating contingency actions where necessary

Programme Management
Team




Provide advice, training and support to Project Managers
Support the Lewisham project monitoring infrastructure

Corporate Project Board &
Project Review Groups
(PRGs)



Initial and ongoing review of project risk in sign-off of PIDs and
progress reporting
Notify DMT/EMT of any risks that affect the project’s ability to
meet corporate objectives
Informs the Monthly/Quarterly Management Report notifying
EMT and Mayor & Cabinet of risk status against ten corporate
priorities.




3.4 Partnership Risk Management
Partnership working continues to play an increasingly critical role in achieving the Council's vision.
Partnerships often involve complex types of risk, which can, if not correctly managed, adversely affect the
delivery of services to end users.
Managing risk in our partnerships is therefore an important element of the Council's risk management
strategy. The Council will continue to develop and build on the good practice applied in the governance of
its key partnerships and the management of risk associated with them.

Page 57

Page 8
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

For Strategic Partnerships, the Council will maintain a risk register identifying the risks to the Council (not
the individual members or partnership overall) in accordance with the previously referenced framework. It
is recognised as good practice that each partnership shares its risk register with the individual partner
organisations so they are each informed of the risks that the partnership faces.
In addition, the Council will manage its own risks associated with the partnership and each directorate will
reflect these in its directorate risk registers.
4.0 Roles and Responsibilities
The Cabinet Member for Resources and the Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration will drive the
process as risk management champions but managing risk is the responsibility of everyone within the
organisation.
This is not a new responsibility, but formalisation of good working practices. Training will be provided to
key personnel on an ongoing basis and included within induction training to ensure that Members and
Officers are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to enable them to manage risk within their
own area of responsibility and contribute to the Council’s management of risk overall.
Particular roles and responsibilities are summarised in Table 3 (overleaf).

Page 58

Page 9
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Table 3: Reporting Framework for Risk Management

Mayor & Cabinet
or Full Council

Audit Panel

Annually

- Receive annual report to provide assurance
that the Council has considered and
documented risk in the Corporate Risk
Register
- Receive annual report to provide assurance
that the Council has considered and
documented risk in the Corporate Risk
Register

Annually

- Scrutinise the process and make reports &
recommendations on acceptance of the Risk
Management Policy & Strategy

Internal Control Board

Directorate Management
Teams

Corporate Project Board

-Approve Risk Management Policy & Strategy
-Determine & prioritise corporate strategic
risks
-Review Corporate Risk Register and
monitoring of risks
-Oversee the annual review of effectiveness of
the system of internal Control
-ensure a corporate approach to the
management of risk, health & safety and
emergency planning

Quarterly

-Ensure all risk assessments are undertaken
within the prescribed timeframe.
-Undertake quarterly horizon scan and review
of risk and maintain the Directorate risk
register.
- Disseminate information from the ICB to
Heads of Service

Quarterly

-Initial and ongoing review of project risk in
sign off PIDs and progress reporting
-Notify DMT/EMT of any risks that affect the
project’s ability to meet corporate objectives

Project Review Groups

Heads of Service

-Work with teams to analyse and manage
service risks and record in service risk
register.
-Monitor progress on managing risk and report
to the Directorate Management Team
(Quarterly)

- Work with teams to analyse and manage service
risks and record in Service Plans
-Monitor progress on managing risk and identify
emerging risks and report to
the Directorate Management Team (Quarterly)

Page 59

Page 10
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

5.0 Reporting & Review Framework
The main reporting mechanism will be by use of the Risk Registers. A risk register form is at Appendix 1.
Risks, even at a strategic level, do not remain static and therefore the Risk Registers will be regularly
reviewed and kept up-to-date within the performance framework to remain valid.
DMTs will consider risk no less frequently than quarterly and update their directorate’s risk registers and
disseminate information from the ICB to Heads of Service. Risks associated with any new initiatives and
activities will be formally identified, appraised and added to the Risk Register at the appropriate level.
The ICB will receive quarterly updates on progress against the Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
Action Plan. The annual review of the AGS will be undertaken by the AGS Working Party and reported to
the Internal Control Board at the end of each financial year. The Annual Governance Statement on Internal
Control will be published with the Final Accounts.
6.0 Training and Development
An e-learning module has been launched to ensure that Members, Officers and key Partners have access
to materials to equip them with the necessary knowledge and skills to:





Identify and evaluate risks
manage the risks involved with their service area
develop their understanding of what risk management is
understand their responsibilities for managing risks.

Targeted training will be delivered on an ongoing basis.
7.0 Measuring our Success
In reviewing this strategy it is vital that we make a judgement about the level of success it has achieved. In
order to do this, the information in Table 5 below will be considered.

Page 60

Page 11
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Table 5: Measures of Success
Objective

Measure of Success

1

Help us achieve the Council’s Corporate
priorities

- No negative impact of unidentified risks on
delivery of corporate priorities

2

Integrate risk management into the culture of
the Authority

- Completeness of Risk Registers
- inclusion of risk in reports requiring decisions
- links to service plans and performance
management

3

Identify, evaluate and manage risk in
accordance with good practice

- Positive internal and external inspection reports

4

Anticipate and respond to changing social,
environmental and legislative requirements

- Enhanced planning and prioritisation
- Reduction in the number of urgent/
retrospectively applied decisions
- Reduction in legal challenge

5

Prevent injury and damage and reduce cost of
risk

- No increase in number of liability insurance
claims paid
- Cost of Council contribution to insurance claims

6

Raise awareness of the need for risk
management in all service areas

- Risk management included in induction and
training programme

7

Mitigate risks

- Reduction in the number of risks colour-coded
red against target

8

Enhance corporate governance of risk

- No deterioration in positive external inspection
reports
- Increase in positive assurance opinions from
internal and external audits

9

Optimising opportunities

- Successful completion of projects where
benefits outweigh the risks

10

Enhance knowledge sharing and learning
lessons

- Lessons learnt from incidents/near misses will
be reported at ICB meetings

Page 61

Page 12
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

AAppendixA 1
Risk Name &
Category

Curr
ent
statu
s

Current
score

Target
score

Current
v target

Direct'n
of travel

Responsible

What are we
planning to do

By when

Notes

1.Compliance
with the Law
1A Governance

Impact
Likelihood
1B Regulatory

Impact

Page 62

Likelihood
2.Provide
Services to
Users
2A Process

Impact
Likelihood

2B Technology
Impact
Likelihood
3.Developing
Staff/Partners
3A Workforce

Impact
Likelihood
3B Partnerships

Page 13
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

AAppendixA 1
Risk Name &
Category

Curr
ent
statu
s

Current
score

Target
score

Current
v target

Direct'n
of travel

Responsible

What are we
planning to do

By when

Notes

Impact
Likelihood
4.Services
Represent VFM
4A
Procurement
Impact
Likelihood
4B Performance

Page 63

Impact

Likelihood
5. Manage
within Budget
5A Financial
Impact
Likelihood
5B Business
Continuity
Impact
Likelihood

Page 14
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Appendix 2 – Risk Descriptors (Score is highest in any column)
Likelihood: Of the risk / hazard occurring Impact: Most probable result or consequence of the risk/hazard occurring

Likelihood
Probability

Description 1

Description 2

Very High

5

> 50%

More likely to occur than not

Regular occurrence. Circumstances frequently
encountered - daily/weekly/monthly

High

4

21 – 50%

Likely to occur

Likely to happen at some point within the next 1-2 years.
Circumstances occasionally encountered (few times a
year)

Medium

3

6 – 20%

Reasonable chance of occurring

Only likely to happen every 3 or more years

Low

2

1 – 5%

Unlikely to occur

Has happened rarely

Very Low

1

< 1%

Will only occur in exceptional circumstances

Very low probability / never before

Page 64

Rating

Page 15
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Impact: Most probable result or consequence of the risk/hazard occurring

Impact

Impact on:
Individual

Service

Reputation

Finance / Budgets

Death of an individual or
several people

Complete loss of services, including several
important areas of service
Service Disruption: 5+ Days.
Service Resource Diversion: Up to 80%

Adverse and persistent national
media coverage. Adverse central
government response, involving
(threat of) removal of delegated
powers. Officer(s) and/or
Members forced to resign
Adverse publicity in
professional/municipal press,
affecting perception/standing in
professional/local government
community.
Adverse local publicity/local public
opinion

£5m +

Negative local publicity of a
persistent nature

£500k - £1m

High

4

Severe injury to an
individual or several
people, requiring
immediate hospitalisation

Major loss of an important service area
Service Disruption: 3-5 Days
Service Resource Diversion: Up to 60%

Medium

3

Low

2

Very Low

1

Injury to an individual,
requiring immediate
hospitalisation
Minor injury to an
individual or several
people requiring hospital
treatment
Minor injury to an
individual requiring
hospital treatment

Major effect to an important service area
Service Disruption: 2-3 Days
Service Resource Diversion: Up to 40%
Major effect to an important service area for a
short period
Service Disruption: 1-2 Days
Service Resource Diversion: Up to 30%
Significant effect to non-crucial service area
Service Resource Diversion: Less than 20%

Page 65

Very High

Rating
5

£2.5m - £5m

£1m - £2.5m

Negative local publicity
£250k - £500k

Page 16
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Appendix 3 – Service Planning Guidance/Example
Key Example Risk Categories
Risk Name &
Category
1.Compliance
with the Law
2.Secure
Services to
Users
3.Developing
Staff/Partners
4.Services
Represent VFM

Risk
Introduction of new external audit arrangements
could place additional regulatory demands on the
service
Significant legacy data quality issues across the
service
Cultural resistance to change impacts employee
relations
Recent redundancies and loss of expert capacity
within the team could lead to diminution in service

Likelihood

Impact

4

2

4

5

3

4

5

4

Mitigation
We are in discussion with our new auditor to agree a lighter touch
audit for the forthcoming year. As a result, the impact of this risk
should not be as significant as originally anticipated.
Additional resource has been identified to undertake data cleansing
of management information systems. It is anticipated that this
exercise will be completed by June 2017.
Regular staff communications on Council pressures and changes.

Page 66

Every effort is being made to reduce key person dependency within
the service. These efforts should mean that the impact of
redundancies will be less severe than would been otherwise.
Robust savings/decision making process. Monitoring of savings
implementations.

5. Manage
Inability to meet savings and deliver service within
4
4
within Budget
balanced budget
Comply with the Law
1
Compliance with Constitution (decision making etc), JR, Investigations; Data Breaches: Breach of Statutory Duties; H&S Breach; Poor Inspection
Secure Services to Users
2
Lack of Policies/Procedures; Poor Internal Audit; Customer Needs not met; Complaints; Poor Customer Satisfaction; System; System Failure
Developing Staff & Partners
3
PES; HR Casework; Employee Relations; Recruitment and Retention issues; Breakdown of Relationships; Conflicting Objectives etc
Services Represent Value for Money
4
Non-compliance with/Use of Corporate Procurement Procedures; Contract Monitoring not Ensuring VFM;Accurate, Complete Data; Lack of Objectives
Manage Within Budget
5
Budget Overspend; Non-Delivery of Savings; Compliance with Standing Orders/Financial Regulations; Accurate, Complete Data; Lack of records
Judgement
Very High
High
Medium
Low
Very Low

Score
5
4
3
2
1

Page 17
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Appendix 4 – Corporate Internal Control Board Terms of Reference
Corporate Internal Control Board
Membership










Independent non-executive Chair
Chief Executive
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration
Executive Director for Children & Young Persons
Executive Director for Community Services
Executive Director to Customer Services
Head of Law
Group Manager Insurance & Risk
Head of Corporate Resources (for monitoring and control)

Terms of Reference
1. To identify and manage key strategic risks that could prevent the Council from meeting its
objectives
2. To link risks to the corporate priorities and assess the likely impact and consequences of those
risks
3. To allocate responsibilities for controlling identified risks
4. To complete the Corporate Risk Register, reviewing and monitoring this on a quarterly basis
5. To receive regular reports on Internal Control within the Authority
6. To ensure a corporate approach to the management of risk, health and safety and emergency
planning
7. To approve the Risk Management Policy and Risk Management Strategy
8. To support the risk management reporting and review framework, detailed in the Risk
Management Strategy
9. To oversee the annual review of the System of Internal Control and Annual Governance
Statement
1.1

Frequency of Meetings
Quarterly

1.2



Accountability and Links
Informs EMT and Mayor & Cabinet quarterly of the risk status against the ten corporate priorities
in Management Report
Report to Audit Panel annually

Page 67

Page 18
Risk Management Strategy – 2017 – 2020

Agenda Item 6
AUDIT PANEL

1.

Report Title

Internal Audit Update Report

Key Decision

No

Ward

ALL

Contributors

Head of Corporate Resources

Class

Part 1

Item No. 6

Date: 20 March 2018

Purpose of the report

1.1. This report presents members of the Audit Panel with:
 Progress against the internal audit plans
 Annual audit plans for 2018/19; and
 Progress of implementation of internal audit recommendations;
2.

Recommendations

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Panel note this report and approve the Audit
Plans for 2018/19.
3.

Executive Summary

3.1. Progress against the corporate audit plan
There were 13 audits finalised since the last meeting. The plan is expected to
have all audits by draft by the end of April and finals issued by May.
There were 11 audits deferred or cancelled. Six were deferred to 18/19, four
will be considered when meeting the CYP Heads of Service and one was
cancelled. There were no additional pieces of work.
3.2. Limited, No Assurance, and Consultancy reports.
There was one consultancy report issued since the last meeting.
3.3. High or Medium recommendations not agreed by management
Two recommendations that were not agreed by management were referred to
the Internal Control Board (ICB) in January. They delegated the decision to the
relevant Executive Director (ED) to assess the risk / cost.
A further Medium recommendation was not agreed. This is due to go to ICB in
April.
3.4. Follow up reviews
Five follow up reports were issued since the last meeting. It showed that 83%
of recommendations were either implemented or in progress.
1

Page 68

3.5. Management progress against recommendations made
3.6. Of the 159 open recommendations, 54 (34%) were recorded as overdue. In
addition, 30% of open recommendations are currently taking 12 months or
more to implement.
3.7. Types of controls for recommendations made
Based on the 13 reports issued since the last meeting, it appears that the
majority of recommendations were made within the areas of Governance ,
Compliance (Statutory / Legal) and Procedures.
3.8. Schools - audit plan, progress on recommendations and follow-up reviews
The schools plan is underway, with 82% of the plan to at least the start of
fieldwork stage. There were four school reports finalised since the last
meeting. Although the some schools had be rescheduled due to available
internal audit resources, they will all be audited by the end of March 2018.
There were no follow-up reviews issued since the last meeting.
Of the 99 open recommendations, 60 (61% were overdue). This is the same
level as reported at the last meeting.
3.9. Annual Audit Plan for 18-19
The audit plan for 2018-19 has approximately 1,000 days. This includes
contingency. It covers, schools’, IT, General, Contract /Project, Finance, follow
up and advisory work.
3.10. Oracle cloud
The Oracle Cloud migration and integration for finance, HR and payroll
functions is behind schedule. Without data in the system and documented ‘to
be’ business processes for operating the system, internal audit have not yet
been able to review or test the wider control environment for Oracle Cloud.
3.11. Any other business
Staff turnover with both in-house and contractor and the need to support the
Oracle programme have resulted in some delay to the progress of the plan.
A new audit management and action tracking system is being implemented.
4.

Background

4.1. Internal Audit is a statutory service. Its main priority is to provide management
and members with independent and objective assurance on the control
environment within the Council.
4.2. The internal audit service consists of an in-house team that is supported by
external service providers.
4.3. This details in this report for the 2017/18 work are as at the 28 February 2018.
5.

Progress against the corporate internal audit plan

5.1. The status of the plan compared against last year shows that the number of
final and drafts reports issued is the same as last year.
2

Page 69

5.2. There were a higher number of reports in the plan last year at this stage of the
year. However, this number did not include those audits cancelled / deferred at
the end of the year.
5.3. Internal audit took the decision to cancel / defer audits at this stage in the year,
rather than after March. See section 5.6 for further details.

Original
Plan

Extra
Audits

65

Dropped
Audits

8

Current
Plan

(17)

Not Yet
Started /
Pre ToR

56

12

ToR /
Field
work
stage

Reports
at Draft

11

8

Final
Reports

25

5.4. Of the 12 at the Not Yet Started / Pre ToR stage:




Four have had pre-audit meetings
Four are IT audits, with two relating to the new Oracle. Work has been
completed (advisory) by the in-house team, but the technical side is reliant
on the implementation of the system.
The remaining four are in the process of contacting the departments.

5.5. There were 13 audits finalised since the last meeting. The detailed status plan
can be found in appendix 1, and the executive summary for the Consultancy
reports can be found in appendix 2.
Date of
Final

Audit
Opinion

Freedom of Information and DPA

09/02/18

Satisfactory

Main Accounting 17-18

06/02/18

Pensions for LGPS and TPS 17-18

Audit (Corporate)

Follow
up due

Recs. Made
H

M

L

n/a

-

7

4

Satisfactory

n/a

1

3

2

15/01/18

Satisfactory

n/a

-

10

1

Capital Expenditure 17-18

10/01/18

Satisfactory

n/a

-

3

1

Treasury Management 17-18

06/12/17

Substantial

n/a

-

2

-

Payroll 17-18

06/02/17

Substantial

n/a

-

2

3

Budget Monitoring 17-18

05/12/17

Satisfactory

n/a

-

5

1

Youth Offending

06/02/18

Consultancy

n/a

-

9

-

Housing Benefit and CTRS 17-18

28/02/18

Substantial

n/a

-

1

1

Client Contribution for Care Provision
17-18

20/02/18

Substantial

n/a

-

2

-

Garden Waste Service

05/01/18

Satisfactory

n/a

1

7

5

Homelessness

27/11/17

Satisfactory

n/a

-

6

2

Parking Contract

27/11/17

Satisfactory

n/a

1

4

3

3

Page 70

5.6. Cancelled / Deferred
Internal audit made the decision to cancel or defer audits now, rather than at
the end of the financial year. There are several reasons for this.


To stop cancelling audits at year-end so they can be considered in the
next year’s plan.



To ensure that the newly recruited in-house team and contractor are
starting a fresh year without trying to catch up.



To replace the auditor who worked with CYP and establish the relationship
and understanding to support the work plan for agreed audits.

5.7. Those audits that are deferred to the 18/19 audit plan are:


Advice and support of HR / Recruitment process (R&R)



SEN Process (CYP)



Rogue Landlords (CUS)



Disability Facilities Grant (CUS)



Homecare Service (COM)



Hand over from Hospital Discharge Neighbourhood team (COM).

5.8. Those audits that will be taken into consideration later in 18/19 when working
with CYP, include:


Children Looked After and Achieving Permanence (Adoption and Care
Leavers experiences)



Children who need help and protection



Section 47 Referrals and Data Quality



Early Years 30hrs +

One audit cancelled and not being deferred to 18/19 is: Decant processes.
5.9. Additional
There was no identified additional assurance or consultancy work required.
6.

Limited, No Assurance, and Consultancy Corporate reports

6.1. There was one consultancy review issued. No Limited reports or No assurance
reports were issued since the last meeting. The executive summaries for these
reports can be found in appendix 2.

4

Page 71

7.

High or Medium recommendations not agreed by management

7.1. Where management do not agree high or medium recommendation, the
recommendation goes before the next Internal Control Board (ICB) for the final
decision.
7.2. ICB decide if they accept the risk of not implementing or agree that it should be
implemented. Where they agree it should be implemented, the
recommendations are monitored in the normal way. Where ICB do not agree
to implement the recommendation, they are then reported at the next Audit
Panel meeting.
7.3. There are currently two recommendations not agreed by management that
were referred to the Internal Control Board. They delegated the decision to the
relevant Executive Director (ED) to assess the risk / cost. This continues to be
chased. The ED decision, when confirmed, will be reflected in the monitoring
of recommendations in the usual way.
8.

Follow-up reviews

8.1. Internal audit follow-up only those reports with a Limited or No Assurance
opinion, or Consultancy review. This is done six months after the final report.
8.2. However, internal audit reserve the right to follow-up on any audit or any
individual recommendation if required.
8.3. The table below lists the follow-ups conducted since the last meeting, showing
the number of implemented, in progress and not implemented. It should be
noted that some of these follow-ups were overdue, as the service transitions to
from the old follow-up process.

Audit

Date of Implemented In
follow up
Progress

Banking 16-17

06/02/18

4

3

2

Accounts Receivable 16-17

17/01/18

2

5

-

Compliance with the Code of
Connection (CoCo) and Public
Sector Network (PSN).

17/01/18

1

1

1

ICT Governance Arrangements
with Brent

10/01/18

7

-

-

Schools’ Catering Contract

09/02/18

-

7

3

14

16

6

39%

44%

17%

Total

5

Page 72

Not
Implemented

8.4. The table shows that 17% of recommendations were not implemented in full, or
not started at the time the follow-up review was conducted. However, 83%
were either in progress or implemented. This is an improvement on the last
period.
9.

Management progress against recommendations made
Overdue, Re-occurring and reopened recommendations

9.1. The table below shows the last rolling year results for overdue, reopened, and
reoccurring recommendations. It also shows the percentage of overdue
recommendations to open ones as at the 28/02/18.
9.2. To accompany the table, appendix 3 lists the individual audits with
recommendations that are either:




Overdue (due date has passed)
Re-occurring core financial recommendations, or
Recommendations were re-opened at the time of the follow-up.
Month of
meeting

Current no.
No. of
of open recs overdue recs

No. of recs
that have
been reopened

No of reoccurring
core
financial rec

Percentage
of overdue
recs to open

Mar 18

159

54

23

15

34%

Dec 17

108

25

12

12

23%

Sep 17

162

54

18

22

33%

May 17

146

22

2

28

15%

Mar 17

123

26

8

9

21%

9.3. Compared to the last period this shows an increase on the number and
proportion of overdue recommendations. This could be down to management
not updating or updating but delaying the due date. It is also impacted by the
higher number of reopened recommendations when, upon checking, there is
not the evidence to confirm the actions actually been done.
Aged analysis report
9.4. This age analysis for recommendations is worked out by using the current due
date for each open recommendation against the date of the final report.

6

Page 73

Month
of
Meeting

No. of
recs
under 3
mths

No of
recs 3
under 6
mths

No of
recs
from 6+
to 9
mths

No. of
rec 9+
to 12
mths

No of
recs 12+
to 18
mths

No of
recs
over
18+
mths

% of
recs
over 12
m

Mar 18

59

26

11

16

30

17

30%

Dec 17

14

29

25

15

8

17

23%

Sep 17

48

32

41

10

24

7

19%

Jun 17

62

26

30

11

7

10

12%

Mar 17

30

27

12

31

19

6

20%

9.5. The table above shows that 30% of open recommendations have been open
for over one year and remain to be completed. This is an increase from the
23% reported at the last meeting, and continues the trend for management
taking longer to action agreed recommendations.
9.6. While it should be noted that they might be some recommendations that are
legitimately due in over one year, such as those dependent on procurement
and implementation of a new system, the trend is negative.
9.7. Those recommendations over 12 months or more are flagged by internal audit
for discussion at the monthly DMT meetings.
10. Types of controls for recommendations made
10.1. It was agreed that audits conducted from 2017/18 will record the types of
controls they relate to for High or Medium recommendations made. The table
below are from the reports issued since the last meeting.
10.2. Please note, the categorising of recommendation to control type can be
subjective. Some recommendations may also cover more than one control
issue. In addition, the same recommendation can be made in more than one
audit (i.e. procedures), but will only show once in the table.
Control Type

Recommendation

Governance








Hosting agreement to define BCP arrangements
Measureable targets / KPIs should be developed
and reported on
Meetings to be held regularly and minuted
Annual charges to be formally approved
Performance reports used to identify and prioritise
cases to be reviewed
Disputes to be resolved promptly and minuted

7

Page 74

Control Type

Recommendation



Compliance / Legal /
Statutory







Procedure










IT




Produce business plan, including risk register and
training for members
Retain signed and date copies of documentation of
fees arranged
As per ICO –
o Review complaints in a timely manner
o FOI and SAR handed in a timely manner
o Exemptions to SAR should be
communicated in a timely manner
Acknowledge FOI requests as per council policy
As per handbook highlight reports are prepared
every two months
Clarification if the council is now compliant with
PCI requirements.
Statutory notices of membership should be sent in
a timely manner
Obtain authorisation from members for transfers
Check that required evidence is reviewed
Procedures should be updated and is adequate
Sufficient notes should be completed
Checks to see if all evidence is retained and
recorded
Training should be provided
Update timetable
Put processes in place to ensure details are
completed.
Password parameter settings should set /
reviewed
Interfaces to and from AIMs should be
documented.

DPA




Monitor mandatory DPA training across the council
User access is provided only on a need to know
basis and reviewed at least annually

Other



Exemptions applied to FOI should be process in a
timely manner
Review expenditure budget ensuring it takes into
account the LLW
Transfers between authorities should be done in a
timely manner



Policy




Policy should be regularly reviewed and fit for
purpose.
Strategy should be updated

8

Page 75

Control Type

Recommendation

Authorisation



Authorisations should be sought from members
prior to transfers

Reconciliation





Reconciliations to be done in a timely manner
Reconciliations to reviewed by second officer
Reconciliations to be prepared and checked in a
timely manner
Variances should be investigated promptly
Reconciliations should be signed and dated by
reconciler and reviewer.





Separation of Duties

PayPal reconciliations should be introduced,
ensuring a separation of duties

11. Progress against schools’ internal audit plan
11.1. The table below represents the status of the schools’ audit plan for 2017/18.
All the school visits are booked up and will be completed by year-end by the inhouse team and Royal Borough of Greenwich. The status of the schools’ plan
or 2017/18 can be found in appendix 4.
Original
Plan

Extra
Audits

27

Dropped
Audits

-

-

Current
Plan

Not
Started

27

5

FieldWork
stage

Draft
Reports

4

Final
Report

7

11

11.2. There were four school audits finalised since the last meeting.
Recs. Made
Audits (Schools)

Date of Final Audit Opinion
H

M

L

Brent Knoll Special School

25/01/18

Satisfactory

-

10

15

Holy Trinity

06/12/17

Satisfactory

-

11

9

Eliot Bank Primary

20/12/17

Substantial

-

2

-

Gordonbrock Primary

07/02/18

Substantial

-

1

1

School Recommendations
11.3. The table below shows the status of open High and Medium school
recommendations as at the 28/02/18. The percentage of overdue to open
recommendations is 61%, which is the same as the last meeting.
11.4. The status of the individual schools were they are overdue can be found in
appendix 5.

9

Page 76

Month of
meeting

Current no. of open
recs

No. of overdue recs

Percentage of
overdue recs to open

Mar 18

99

60

61%

Dec 17

143

87

61%

Sep 17

153

70

46%

May 17

141

82

58%

Mar 17

107

41

38%

School follow up reviews
11.5. There were no school follow up reviews issued since the last report.
12. Audit Plan for 2018-19
12.1. The audit plans (both corporate and schools’) for next year is in Appendix 6.
This plan was prepared based on risk registers (corporate and directorate),
meetings with Directors and Heads of Service, service plans, auditor
knowledge and information about emerging risks from various external sources.
12.2. The plans contains approximately 1,000 days / 95 pieces of internal audit work,
including about 100 days of contingency. The work includes follow up reviews,
schools audits, IT audits, contract / project type audits, general & core financial
audits and advisory work.
12.3. Any changes to the plan will be reported to the audit panel in the usual way.
12.4. Regular meetings / contact with the main Heads of Services in CYP and COM
with specifically allocated Principal Auditors are planned. This will ensure that
both sides can work together to ensure the audit plan, emerging risks and
advice is consistent and in line with current risks and issues.
12.5. The audit panel are required to approve the plan.
13. Oracle Cloud
13.1. The project to move the Council’s financial system from Oracle R12 to their
new cloud version and integrate HR and Payroll functions on Oracle (from a
separate, ResourceLink system) is underway but behind plan.
13.2. The project is running behind schedule, in particular due to delays in data
migration and testing. This has caused the finance switch over date to be put
back to May, from April. The Payroll switch over date is still to be confirmed
subject to parallel running over the summer of 2018. It has also increased the
risk of errors or teething troubles as the lack of data in the system limited the
amount of service user testing able to be done. All delays come at a cost,
financial and extra work for staff time, consultants, and legacy system/dual
running.
10

Page 77

13.3. With the project behind schedule internal audit has not been able to complete
their planned work to support the implementation. Internal audit commented on
the system controls at the early stages of the project. However, without data in
the system and documented ‘to be’ business processes for those operating the
system, internal audit have not yet been able to review or test the wide control
environment for Oracle Cloud – finance, HR or payroll. This work, along with
balance transfers, will now be for 2018/19.
14. Any other business
14.1. Resources have been an issue for both the in-house team and the Contractor
in the half of the year due to higher than expected staff turnover.
14.2. The in-house team had two Principal Auditor vacancies (out of three posts),
which are now filled. One started in January and the other in February.
14.3. The London Borough of Croydon Framework (Mazars) was up for tender in
2017. This affected in the recruitment of staff due to the uncertainty of the
outcome of the tender. Mazars were awarded the contract again in November.
14.4. These delays caused a delay in starting the core financial audits in quarter
three. However, since January, the plan has caught up, and is the same stage
as last year. A verbal update on the plan can be presented to the audit panel if
required at the meeting.
14.5. The new Audit Management Software system, with action tracking is being
installed for use from 2018. User testing is underway.
15. Legal implications
15.1. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.
16. Financial implications
16.1. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.
17. Equalities implications
17.1. No direct equalities implications have been identified, in terms of adverse
impact, with respect to the Council’s obligations under the Equality Act 2010
18. Crime and disorder implications
18.1. There are no crime and disorder implications arising directly from this report
19. Environmental implications
19.1. There are no specific environmental implications arising directly from this report
20. Background papers.
11

Page 78

20.1. There are no background papers.
If there are any queries on this report, please contact:
David Austin, Head of Corporate Resources, on 020 8314 9114, or email him
at: david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk

12

Page 79

Appendix 2 – Corporate No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy Executive Summaries
KEY - CF = Core Financial
IT - Information Technology
CT = Contract
GEN = General Corporate Audits
Type

Name of Corporate Audit

ToR

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

Payroll 17-18 (Core Financial Audit)

06/02/18

Substantial

-

2

3

CF

Pensions for LGPS and TPS 17-18 (Core
Financial Audit)

15/01/18

Satisfactory

-

10

1

CF

Treasury Management 17-18 (Core
Financial Audit)

06/12/17

Substantial

-

2

-

CF

Budget Monitoring 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

05/12/17

Satisfactory

-

5

1

CF

Capital Expenditure 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

10/01/18

Satisfactory

-

3

1

CF

Main Accounting 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

06/02/18

Satisfactory

1

3

2

CF

Housing Benefit 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

28/02/18

Substantial

-

1

1

CF

Client Contribution for Care Provision 1718 (Core Financial Audit)

20/02/18

Substantial

-

2

-

CF

Payments to Adult Care Providers 17-18
(Core Financial Audit)

CF

Non-Current Assets 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

Page 80

CF

13

Appendix 2 – Corporate No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy Executive Summaries
Type

CF

Name of Corporate Audit

Direct Payments 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

CF

Council Tax 17-18 (Core Financial Audit)

CF

Banking 17-18 (Core Financial Audit)

CF

Business Rates 17-18 (Core Financial Audit)

CF

Accounts Payable 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

CF

Accounts Receivable 17-18 (Core Financial
Audit)

Page 81

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

ToR

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

19/01/18

Satisfactory

2

2

1

Payments to Care Provider and Foster
Carers for Looked After Children 17-18
(Core Financial Audit)

CF

Type

ToR

Name of Corporate Audit

IT

Aims upgrade

IT

Controcc System

IT

IT Helpdesk - Monitoring and escalation

14

Appendix 2 – Corporate No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy Executive Summaries
Type

Name of Corporate Audit

IT

Ash (Debt recovery) Feeder System

IT

Tribal System

IT

New HR / Payroll IT systems

IT

Oracle - Financial Replacement System

Page 82

ToR

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

ToR

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

Type

Name of Corporate Audit

CT

Pre contract and Tendering

24/11/17

Limited

4

5

-

CT

Monitoring of Child Care Providers

17/10/17

Limited

2

5

-

CT

Facilities Management (FM?) - Contract
management

10/10/17

Satisfactory

-

8

3

CT

Libraries

29/09/17

Satisfactory

1

3

1

CT

Monitoring of Lewisham Homes
Management Agreement

24/11/17

Satisfactory

-

4

1

CT

Parking Contract

27/11/17

Satisfactory

1

4

3

CT

Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd
(CRPL)

15

Appendix 2 – Corporate No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy Executive Summaries
Type

Name of Corporate Audit

CT

Reed Agency

CT

Health Visitor Contract

CT

Procurement Arrangements

Type

Name of Corporate Audit

ToR

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

ToR

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

IR35 - off payroll engagements

09/11/17

Satisfactory

-

2

-

GN

New MASH Arrangements (CYP)

28/09/17

Consultancy

1

7

3

GN

Blue Badges, Freedom Passes,
Discretionary Passes and Taxi cards

26/10/17

Substantial

-

1

1

GN

Adult Social Care Peer review action plan

26/09/17

Substantial

-

2

4

GN

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and
Departmental Service Plans.

21/07/17

Consultancy

-

8

1

GN

Apprenticeships, Graduates and other
Professional Training Schemes

18/07/17

Substantial

-

2

1

GN

Homelessness

27/11/18

Satisfactory

-

6

2

GN

Youth offending

06/02/18

Consultancy

-

9

-

Page 83

GN

16

Appendix 2 – Corporate No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy Executive Summaries
Type

Name of Corporate Audit

ToR

F/W
Started

F/W
Ended

Exit
Meeting
Held

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

Garden waste service

05/01/18

Satisfactory

1

7

5

GN

FOI / DPA

09/02/18

Satisfactory

-

7

4

GN

General Data Protection Regulation
Preparation

GN

Initial Contact, Information, and Advice &
Assessments –Adults

GN

Procurement Cards

GN

Risk Framework

GN

Door2Door

GN

Governors Support

GN

Adoption Process

GN

VAT Audit

GN

Grants (Large)

GN

Grants (Small)

Page 84

GN

17

Appendix 2 – Corporate No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy Executive Summaries

Page 85
18

Appendix 3 - Status of corporate recommendations.
Re-occurring
(core only)

Name of Audit (Corporate)

Opinion

Final Report
Date

Recs Overdue

Re-opened at F/up

Accounts Payable 2016-17

Limited

16/03/2017

2

4

Accounts Receivable 16-17

Limited

18/05/2017

1

Adult Social Care System - Back up and
BCP

Limited

04/04/2016

1

2

Appointeeship and Deputyship 2015-16

Satisfactory

07/06/2016

1

1

Limited

18/05/2017

Budget Monitoring and Setting 2016-17

Substantial

03/03/2017

1

1

Budget Monitoring and Setting 2017-18

Satisfactory

05/12/2017

4

4

Capital Expenditure 17-18

Satisfactory

10/01/2018

1

1

Client Contributions to Care Provision 16-17

Satisfactory

24/05/2017

Compliance with the DPA 1998

Satisfactory

04/05/2016

Food Safety, Hygiene and Standards

Satisfactory

27/05/2016

1

Garden Waste Service 2017/18

Satisfactory

05/01/2018

8

Homelessness Applicants 2017/18

Satisfactory

27/11/2017

4

ICT Disaster Recovery

Substantial

04/11/2017

1

Banking 16-17

Page 86

19

3
1

4

1
2

Appendix 3 - Status of corporate recommendations.
Re-occurring
(core only)

Opinion

Final Report
Date

Recs Overdue

IR35 - Off Payroll Engagements

Satisfactory

09/11/2017

1

Mobile Devices Contract 16-17

Satisfactory

07/07/2017

1

Limited

17/10/2017

7

Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub
Arrangements 2017/18

Consultancy

28/09/2017

6

Payments to Adult Care Providers 2016-17

Satisfactory

05/05/2017

1

3

Payments to Care Providers and Foster
Carers 2016-17

Satisfactory

05/05/2017

1

1

Payroll 2017-18

Substantial

06/12/2017

1

Pensions 17-18

Satisfactory

15/01/2018

1

Limited

24/11/2017

3

Processes for Payments to Main Providers
(Child)

Consultancy

14/06/2016

4

Public Access to Information 2015-16

Satisfactory

04/05/2016

Public Health - Statutory Services 15-16

Satisfactory

06/06/2016

Limited

01/02/2017

Name of Audit (Corporate)

Monitoring of Child Care Providers

Page 87

Pre-contract and Tendering 2017-18

Public Sector Network 16-17

20

Re-opened at F/up

2
1

1

1
1

Appendix 3 - Status of corporate recommendations.

Name of Audit (Corporate)

Opinion

Final Report
Date

Recs Overdue

Re-opened at F/up

Schools' Catering Contract 16-17

Limited

03/03/2017

1

3

SharePoint 14-15

Satisfactory

13/10/2015

South London and Maudsley NHS (SLaM)

Satisfactory

14/07/2015

1

total

54

Page 88
21

Re-occurring
(core only)

2

23

15

Appendix 4 – Schools audit plan and progress

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

St John Baptist CE Primary

19/10/17

Substantial

-

5

3

Greenvale Special

10/10/17

Substantial

-

5

10

Childeric Primary

24/07/17

Substantial

-

3

8

Haseltine Primary

28/09/17

Substantial

-

4

5

Downderry Primary

26/07/17

Satisfactory

-

9

7

Perrymount Primary

13/09/17

Substantial

-

7

6

John Ball Primary

26/09/17

Satisfactory

-

9

9

Kelvin Grove Primary

22/11/17

Substantial

-

8

4

Brent Knoll School

25/01/18

Satisfactory

1

15

10

Eliot Bank Primary

20/12/17

Substantial

-

-

2

Gordonbrock Primary

07/02/18

Substantial

-

1

1

Name of Corporate Audit

F/W
Started

F/W Ended

Page 89

New Woodlands
Elfrida Primary
St Saviour's RC Primary
Holy Trinity CE Primary
St William of York Catholic Primary

22

Draft
report

Appendix 4 – Schools audit plan and progress

Name of Corporate Audit

F/W
Started

F/W Ended

All Saints CE Primary
St George's CE Primary
Coopers Lane Primary
Grinling Gibbons Primary
St James' Hatcham CE Primary
Brindishe Lee Primary

Page 90

Baring Primary
Beecroft Garden Primary
St Bartholomew's CE Primary
Sir Francis Drake Primary
St Winifred's Primary Catholic Primary

23

Draft
report

Final
Report

Assurance
Level

H

M

L

Appendix 5 – Status of schools recommendations

Opinion

Final Report Date

Recs
Overdue

Childeric Primary School

Substantial

26/07/2017

1

Childeric Primary School 2017-18

Substantial

26/07/2017

2

Drumbeat Special School 16/17

Substantial

30/03/2017

3

Forest Hill School 2015-16

Satisfactory

28/02/2016

1

Holy Trinity CE Primary School 2017-18

Satisfactory

08/12/2017

2

John Ball Primary School 2017-18

Satisfactory

28/09/2017

9

Kelvin Grove Primary School 2017-18

Substantial

24/11/2017

2

Marvels Lane 16-17

Satisfactory

19/03/2017

1

Prendergast - Hilly Fields 2015-16

Satisfactory

31/07/2016

2

Prendergast Vale School 2015/16

Substantial

31/07/2016

3

Rangefield Primary School 16-17

Satisfactory

08/02/2017

2

St Augustine's Catholic Primary School

Substantial

17/03/2017

1

St James Hatcham Primary 14-15

Satisfactory

28/02/2015

1

St John the Baptist School 2017-18

Substantial

21/10/2017

1

St Stephens CE Primary School 2016-17

Satisfactory

17/12/2016

3

Torridon Junior School 16-17

Satisfactory

18/03/2017

1

Turnham Primary 13-14

No Assurance

02/08/2013

1

Turnham Primary School 16-17

No Assurance

06/07/2017

24

Name of Audit (Schools)

TOTAL

Page 91
24

60

Appendix 6 – Audit Plan for 2018/19

Corporate Audit Name / Area

Indicative Scope

TPF - Grant claims

To review the TPF grant claims as required by

Hand over from Hospital Discharge
Neighbourhood team

A review the process, including payments and how it will
feed into the pathway digital project and moving to an
electronic way of working.

Recruitment Process

To review the process from DEP to appointment

Disability Facilities Grant

To review the process of the grant from initial application to
approval / monitoring of spend

Waste Management (Domestic)Contract Monitoring.

To review the contract monitoring for the waste (domestic)
contract.

Pooled Budgets and Better Care
Fund

To review the governance and monitoring of pooled
budgets.

School trading Website

To review the new trading website

Early help, Referral and
Assessment service

To review the framework around Early Help, Referral and
Assessment service.

Apprenticeship levy, including
schools

To review how the apprenticeship levy (training) and nonmayoral apprenticeship programme is being used within the
council.

SEND / CWCNS Service

To review the SEND / CWCNS process / framework

Icasework

To review the new Icasework system for complaints for
security and access permission.

Pre Financial Assessment Process

To review the process of pre financial assessments.

DOLS

To review the council’s arrangements for DoL
arrangements.

Agile Working Project

To review the project for Agile working, to include the roll
out of new IT, policies and training

Contract Management

To review the contract management across the all
directorates

Schools Finance

To review the framework, support and advice of the school
finance team.

Complaints (Corporate)

To review the complaints framework for dealing with
corporate complaints

BCP for core services

TBC - Discussions with Head of BCP / DR to agree a rolling
audit plan as BCP in all risk registers

Page 92
25

Appendix 6 – Audit Plan for 2018/19

Corporate Audit Name / Area

Indicative Scope

Supplier Resilience

To review the framework on how the council ensures
current supplier (major) have the resilience to continue to
provide services to the council after award of contract.

CSC Case and Budget
Management

To review the process / controls where the CSC is
overspent to see if changes to improve the budget situation
can be resolved (subject to project progression)

Labour Construction Hub

To review the scheme run by the council to match
experienced construction staff to constructors. To include
training individuals.

Health and Safety (corporate)

Scope to be agreed. Head of Corporate Resources area

Accounts Payable 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Accounts Receivable and Debt
Recovery 18-19 (Core Financial
Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Banking 18-19 (Core Financial
Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Budget Setting and Monitoring 1819 (Core Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Business Rates 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Capital Expenditure 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Client Contribution for Care
Provision 18-19 (Core Financial
Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Council Tax 18-19 (Core Financial
Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Direct Payments (Core Financial
Audit) 18-19

Standard core financial testing programme

Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Reduction Scheme (CTRS) 18-19
(Core Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Main Accounting 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Non-Current Assets 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Page 93
26

Appendix 6 – Audit Plan for 2018/19

Corporate Audit Name / Area

Indicative Scope

Payments to Adult Care Providers
18-19 (Core Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Payments to Child Care Provider
and Foster Carers for Looked After
Children 18-19 (Core Financial
Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Payroll 18-19 (Core Financial
Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Pensions for LGPS 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Pension Investments 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

Treasury Management 18-19 (Core
Financial Audit)

Standard core financial testing programme

ASH - Debt recovery for non
Housing Benefit

To review the system for non-HB debt.

New system for Libraries

To review the information governance and security of the IT
system.

AFACT

Scope to be agreed. Head of Corporate Resources area

Risk

Scope to be agreed. Head of Corporate Resources area

Tendering and procuring contracts

To review the pre contract stage of the procurement
process

Homecare Service

To review payments, monitoring of outcomes and
performance indicators.

MASH - Adults

To review the structure and governance arrangements and
information sharing protocols in the newly formed adult
MASH team

Implementation of GDPR

To review the implementation of the GDPR across the
council and schools.

Besson Street Project

To review the project management.

Rogue Landlords

To review the framework of Rogue landlord. Including how
to identify them, process of resolving issues including any
legal action.

Bereavement Services

To review the framework surrounding the bereavement
services including payments and income.

Page 94
27

Appendix 6 – Audit Plan for 2018/19

Corporate Audit Name / Area

Indicative Scope

Planning Control

To review the framework of the planning control
department.

Fostering Arrangements

Audit review to provide assurance surrounding the
processes and controls for recruitment checks and adhoc
payments.

Performance Management
Framework for CSC

To review the new framework for performance
management.

Child in Need arrangements

To review the framework of CIN.

Transparency Act Adherence

To review the how the council complies with the
transparency code, including any new / upcoming changes.

Income Generation Programme

To review the identification and monitoring of income
generation.

Robotics - HB system

To review the security of the implementation of robotics in
the HB system

Self Service IT processes

To review the BCP, ease of access and security of the
council's self-service systems

ACS Interface with financial
assessments

Review the changes made to LAS and its interface with
Controcc.

Oracle Cloud - Finance

Scope to be agreed, subject to the progress of
implementation.

Oracle Cloud - HR

Pre and post implementation review

Oracle Cloud - Payroll

Pre and post implementation review

New Phone System and BCP

To review the new ACD system that is due to be
implemented by April 18

Office 365 and SharePoint

To review the security and access to office 365 and
SharePoint

Page 95
28

Appendix 6 – Audit Plan for 2018/19

School

Scope

Abbey Manor College

Standard Schools' Programme

Adamsrill Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Addey and Stanhope Secondary

Standard Schools' Programme

Ashmead Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Athelney Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Bonus Pastor Catholic College

Standard Schools' Programme

Chelwood Nursery

Standard Schools' Programme

Conisborough College - (Colfe's Asocated School

Standard Schools' Programme

Deptford Green Secondary

Standard Schools' Programme

Edmund Waller Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Fairlawn Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Forest Hill Secondary

Standard Schools' Programme

Forster Park Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Holbeach Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Kender Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Kilmorie Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Launcelot Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Prendergast Hilly Fields College (Secondary)

Standard Schools' Programme

Prendergast Ladywell Fields College (Secondary)

Standard Schools' Programme

Prendergast Vale College (Secondary)

Standard Schools' Programme

Sedgehill Secondary

Standard Schools' Programme

St Margarets' Lee CE

Standard Schools' Programme

St Mary Magdalen's Catholic

Standard Schools' Programme

St Michael's CE Primary

Standard Schools' Programme

Sydenham Secondary

Standard Schools' Programme

Page 96
29

Appendix 6 – Audit Plan for 2018/19

School

Scope

Trinity CE Secondary (through school)

Standard Schools' Programme

Watergate Special School

Standard Schools' Programme

Page 97
30

